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TALLAHASSEE POLICE DEPARTMENT
FIELD CASE REPORT
CASE#
2020-00078840

RESPONSE TO SCENE

On May 19, 2020 at 1:20a.m., the Consolidated Dispatch Agency received a call for service at the
Circle K at 2683 North Monroe Street, regarding a subject who was bleeding. Officers DeGraw and
responded and made contact with victim Richard Haines, who was bleeding from the area of his eyes,
elbows, and knees. Haines reported the suspect, who was later identified as Wilbon Woodard, threatened
him with a knife and battered him while they were across the street at the China Super Buffet (2698 North
Monroe Street). Haines advised he likely lost his cell phone during the fight at the China Super Buffet and
Woodard was possibly still at the incident location. Haines provided a description of Woodard.
went to the China Super Buffet, attempting to locate Haines’ cell phone. While searching for the phone,
Woodard emerged from behind the building, concealing his right hand behind some nearby bushes. When

directed Woodard to show his hands, Woodard revealed a knife in his right hand and began

advancing toward . gave Woodard several commands to drop the knife, but
Woodard refused and continued charging toward shot at Woodard, ultimately
striking and killing him. 2020-CA-1011

| was contacted to assist with investigating the shooting. Prior to my arrival, Officers DeGraw and
had been separated. | was informed Officer DeGraw was not involved in the shooting, but he heard and
observed parts of the shooting as he ran from the Circle K to the China Super Buffet. Officers DeGraw and
were transported to the Criminal Investigations Bureau for follow-up.

2020-CA-1011
COLLECTION OF EVIDENCE FROM INVOLVED OFFICER,

was escorted to the Criminal Investigations Bureau conference room. was
accompanied by his attorney, , and another Officer, Joshua Armstrong. Also present during
the collection of evidence from were the following personnel:

Amanda Bailey (Violent Crimes Investigator)

Justin French (Training Officer)

Vernon Henderson (Forensic Scientist)

Mark Adrick (Internal Affairs Investigator)

Ginny Osborn (Criminal Investigations Bureau Sergeant)
Shane Porter (Patrol Major)

Jason Laursen (Deputy Chief)

had his handgun holstered with a magazine seated in the weapon and two magazines
secured in pouches on the left side of his duty belt. Officer French counted the rounds of ammunition in

handgun and magazines. was carrying a Glock 22 .40-caliber semi-automatic
REPORTNG OFFICER DATE FELD TRAINNG OFFICER DATE REVEWED BY DATE
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TALLAHASSEE POLICE DEPARTMENT
FIELD CASE REPORT
CASE#
2020-00078840

(continuation)

handgun which contained one unfired cartridge in the chamber. There was a 15-
round capacity magazine seated in the magazine well of the handgun, which contained eight unfired
cartridges. In the magazine pouch closest to belt buckle was a 15-round capacity magazine
which contained 15 unfired cartridges. In the magazine pouch farthest from belt buckle was a
15-round capacity magazine which contained 15 unfired cartridges was not in possession of

any other firearms or ammunition. 2020-CA-1011

It is standard for Officers to carry each of their three issued handgun magazines loaded to capacity
(15) with one (1) cartridge chambered in their handguns, totaling 46 rounds (15+15+15+1) had
was carrying 39 cartridges at the time of inspection, indicating likely fired seven (7) cartridges
during the shooting the incident.

The collection of evidence occurred from approximately 3:15a.m. until 3:34a.m. on May 19, 2020.
Officer French issued a temporary replacement handgun upon conclusion.

Forensic Scientist (F.S.) Vernon Henderson took digital photographs of the handgun, cartridges, and
magazines as they were counted. F.S. Henderson impounded the handgun, cartridges, and magazines as

evidence. F.S. Henderson took digital photographs of who was wearing a standard police
uniform. advised he did not have any physical contact with Woodard, therefore there was no
expectation Woodard’s DNA would be present on or about . No buccal sample was collected
from because there was no expectation that DNA would be present on or about
Woodard.

body worn camera was obtained and Investigator Bailey initiated an upload of the
video from the incident. However, was escorted to the Watch Commander’s Office to have a
download conducted for his Taser activity. Sergeant Ginny Osborn stood by with the body camera until the
upload was completed. Sergeant Osborn verified the video properly uploaded before she returned
body worn camera

While in the Watch Commander’s Office, Sergeant Chris Papy conducted a download of
Taser activity. The activity indicated Taser was not used during his encounter with
Woodard. 2020-CA-1011

. Sergeant Papy, and Investigator Bailey were present during the
download of the Taser activity.

Tallahassee Police Department General Order 63 (Officer-Involved Action Resulting in Serious Injury
or Death) mandates “Each involved officer shall initially be placed on administrative leave for a minimum of
72 hours, followed by an administrative assignment as directed by the Chief of Police or designee.” In

accordance with this policy, Chief Lawrence Revell met with and provided him notification he
was being placed on administrative leave. was driven home by Officer Armstrong.
REPORTNG OFFICER DATE FELD TRAINNG OFFICER DATE REVEWED BY DATE
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TALLAHASSEE POLICE DEPARTMENT
FIELD CASE REPORT
CASE#
2020-00078840

(continuation)

INTERVIEW WITH WITNESS OFFICER, ELJAH DEGRAW

On May 19, 2020 at approximately 4:00a.m., Officer DeGraw was interviewed in the Criminal
Investigations Bureau Interview Room 1 regarding the shooting incident. The interview was audio and video
recorded. Officer DeGraw was advised of oath and perjury via written warning, which he indicated verbally
and via signature he understood. Officer DeGraw swore or affirmed the statement he would provide would

be wholly true. 2020-CA-1011

Officer DeGraw advised the following:
Officer DeGraw works the midnight shift (21:15-07:15) in the Northwest District of the City of Tallahassee.
Officer DeGraw was finishing a call for service at a hotel on North Monroe Street when he observed the call
for service at Circle K regarding Haines’ injuries. Officer DeGraw requested Dispatch send him the call at Circle
K and he arrived on scene shortly thereafter. Another Officer was en route to be Officer DeGraw’s back-up,
but cancelled the other unit and responded to assist Officer DeGraw. Haines was bleeding from
the areas of his eyes, elbows, and knees, as though he’d been in a fight on the ground. Haines reported he
had only recently met Woodard and thought his first name was possibly “Michael.” Haines advised he was
drinking and eating pizza with Woodard and several other transients across the street at the China Super
Buffet. Haines recalled Woodard was carrying two knives and began threatening people with the knives.
Haines told Woodard to stop threatening people with the knives. Woodard pulled out a knife and threatened
to cut and kill Haines with the knife, at which time Haines and Woodard began physically fighting. Woodard
did not use the knife to harm Haines, but Haines recalled Woodard using his hands to attempt to gouge out
Haines’ eyeballs. Haines said he was able to get away and come across the street to Circle K. Haines advised
his cell phone possibly fell out during the fight at the China Super Buffet. Haines advised Woodard was
possibly still at the incident location, as well. Haines described Woodard as a white male with a short, crew-
style haircut wearing a shirt, long pants, and being in the company of a small, black dog, which was possibly a

chihuahua. While Officer DeGraw was obtaining Haines’ statement,
witnessed a portion of the interview. Officer DeGraw asked
street to the China Super Buffet to check for Haines’ phone.

the street, Officer DeGraw heard
Woodard advanced toward

was provided a description of
Woodard. drove across the street to the China Super Buffet and Leon County Emergency
Medical Services assisted Haines to the ambulance. As Haines was being evaluated, Officer DeGraw observed
standing near the drive-through awning of the China Super Buffet, illuminating Woodard near
bushes at the northeast corner of the building with his flashlight. Officer DeGraw told LCEMS personnel he
had to go across the street and Officer DeGraw began running toward the China Super Buffet. While crossing
yelling, “Drop the knife! Drop the knife! Drop the knife!” as
who was running from the area of the drive-through awning
toward North Monroe Street. Officer DeGraw heard approximately 5-7 gunshots fired. Woodard continued

arrived at Circle K and
could go across the
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TALLAHASSEE POLICE DEPARTMENT
FIELD CASE REPORT
CASE#
2020-00078840

(continuation)

to advance toward , despite being shot, or at least shot at. Officer DeGraw notified Dispatch that
shots had been fired. By the time Officer DeGraw reached the eastern parking lot of the China Super Buffet,
was holding Woodard at gunpoint and the black dog was still on scene. Woodard was in a prone
position with his head toward North Monroe Street (east) and his feet toward the China Super Buffet building
(west). Woodard’s left hand was under his torso and his right hand was extended outward, above his head
with a large fixed-blade knife, inches away from his right hand. There was at least one knife sheath on
Woodard’s hip, but there may have been two. Woodard had an apparent gunshot wound to his forehead.
Woodard’s injuries and condition were inconsistent with life (motionless and not making any noise). Although
Officer DeGraw believed Woodard was deceased, he requested Dispatch send LCEMS to the scene for
Woodard’s injuries. Officer DeGraw put gloves on his hands and handcuffed Woodard while
continued to provide deadly cover. LCEMS came from across the street and several Officers arrived on scene
to assist, including Sergeant Kathy Connell. Sergeant Connell informed LCEMS Woodard was decease and
requested they not manipulate the scene. Sergeant Connell assigned Officer Joshua Armstrong to accompany
, and she assigned Officer Gary Senters to accompany Officer DeGraw. Officer DeGraw was not
questioned about the incident by anyone prior to the interview.

Officer DeGraw’s body worn camera was uploaded and a verification was conducted to confirm the
video was properly uploaded. Officer DeGraw’s verbal account of the incident was consistent with the
footage captured via his body worn camera. During the interview, Officer DeGraw’s recounted Haines
provided a potential name for Woodard, which was possibly “Michael.” Officer DeGraw stated he wasn’t
confident “Michael” was the name Haines provided for Woodard. DeGraw’s body camera video captured
Haines providing the name “William” as a possible first name for Wilbon Woodard.

2020-CA-1011

INTERVIEW WITH WITNESS, LEON COUNTY EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES LRNP JASON PEREZ

On Wednesday, May 20, 2020 at approximately 9:00a.m., Investigators conducted an interview with
LRNP Jason Perez. At the time of the shooting incident, Perez was working for LCEMS. Perez and his partner
responded to the Circle K for Haines’ injuries. While on scene at Circle K, Haines made disclosures to Perez
about the battery incident between Haines and Woodard. Additionally, Perez heard and observed portions of
the shooting incident involving Perez also responded to the China Super Buffet for Woodard'’s
injuries. Please see Investigator Daniel Warren’s supplemental report and body worn camera video for
information regarding the interview.

REVIEW OF BODY WORN CAMERA VIDEO,

The Axon body worn camera website maintains an audit of when videos are accessed and by which

REPORTNG OFFICER DATE FELD TRAINNG OFFICER DATE REVEWED BY DATE
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TALLAHASSEE POLICE DEPARTMENT
FIELD CASE REPORT
CASE#
2020-00078840

(continuation)

users. The videos from body worn camera were restricted to only users who required access
for the purpose of the criminal investigation was excluded from that list.

On Wednesday, May 20, 2020 at approximately 3:00p.m., came to the Tallahassee
Police Department to review body worn camera footage and provide a statement regarding the shooting
incident. was accompanied by his attorney, 2020-CA-1011 . and were
escorted to the Criminal Investigations Bureau conference room to review the videos.

The two videos from body worn camera were queued up in separate screens. The first
video was from arrival at Circle K. The second video captured interaction with
Woodard at the China Super Buffet, as well as the shooting incident. was directed to watch only
the videos which were queued on the screens. 2020-CA-1011

The directive and interactions with were captured via body worn camera. A review of
the audits confirmed complied with that direction and did not access either of his videos
outside of the designated opportunity to review them on May 20, 2020.

2020-CA-1011

INTERVIEW WITH INVOLVED OFFICER,

On May 20, 2020 at approximately 3:30p.m., was accompanied by and
interviewed by Investigators in the Criminal Investigations Bureau Interview Room 1. The interview was
captured by in-room audio/video recording as well as body worn camera. was advised of
Miranda warnings via written form and elected to speak to Investigators regarding the shooting incident.
Please see the audio/video recordings and Investigator Daniel Warren’s supplemental report for more
information regarding the interview.

DISPOSITION OF CASE

Additional follow-up is still being conducted in reference to this investigation. This case will remain
Open/Active.
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TALLAHASSEE POLICE DEPARTMENT
FIELD CASE REPORT
CASE#
2020-00078840

0On 5/19/20, | responded as one of the on-call Investigators to the China Super Buffet in reference to an
Officer involved shooting. | arrived on scene and was tasked with canvassing for surveillance video. | noted
exterior cameras at Denny’s located at 2690 N Monroe Street, China Super Buffet located at 2698 N Monroe
Street, Circle K located at 2683 N Monroe Street, and North Florida Animal Hospital located at 2701 N
Monroe Street.

Denny’s and Super China Buffet were closed during my presence. | spoke with the nightshift clerks at Circle K.
The clerks advised they did not have access to the surveillance system, but a manager would be in at 8:00am
that morning. | contacted a vet tech at North Florida Animal Hospital. The tech advised he did not have access
to the surveillance system, but he would make notifications to the owners in the morning.

| completed canvassing all surround buildings and was tasked with creating a photographic lineup once the
identity of the deceased was. | received notification from Sgt. Butler of the deceased name, Woodard
Cleveland Wilbon. Wilbon did not have any CJIS history thus | used his DAVID photograph. | then selected five
random white males between the ages of 65-75 with the last name of Smith. | completed two photographic
line up packets and responded to the incident scene. | provided Inv. Isaacs with the photographic lineup one
at a time and retrieved them back after she had completed the process. | impounded the lineups under TPD
case number 20-78835. 2020-CA-1011

| returned to the incident scene later in the morning to review surveillance video from the neighboring
businesses. | made contact with Circle K manager, Patrice Richardson, at the store. Richardson allowed me
access to the system. | reviewed the surveillance footage and noted the following.

Victim Haines is observed crossing N Monroe Street from China Super Buffet towards Circle K with the
assistance of an unknown white male. Haines walks to the parking requesting help. There was a store clerk in
the parking lot sweeping at the time Haines requested help. The clerk dialed 911 and requested assistance.
Video shows and DeGraw arriving on scene along with Leon County Emergency Medical Services.
LCEMS tends to Haines as drives his patrol vehicle to the China Super Buffet and parks under the
awning with his headlights on. Video shows using his flashlight and then a stream of emergency
vehicles approaching. | exported the video to a hard drive and departed.

I made contacted with staff at North Florida Animal Hospital. | reviewed their footage from the north door
camera. The quality of the footage was poor and had the same angel as Circle K. | did not collect the video
footage due to the poor quality and unable to see any relevant to the incident.

| proceeded to the Denny’s, which is just south of the incident location. | reviewed their live stream of the
exterior camera. A large tree was blocking the view of the incident location, thus | did not review the footage
from the incident.

| returned to the station and burned the Circle K footage to a DVD. The DVD was impounded as evidence

REPORTNG OFFICER DATE FELD TRAINNG OFFICER DATE REVIEWED BY DATE
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TALLAHASSEE POLICE DEPARTMENT
FIELD CASE REPORT

CASE#

2020-00078840

(continuation)

under TPD case number 20-78840.

| contacted the owner of China Super Buffet. | was advised the business does have exterior cameras, but the
business had been closed since March 17, 2020 due to COVID-19. | expressed the importance to view the

surveillance cameras due to the incident being captured on their cameras. | was told they would review the
surveillance cameras as soon as possible. Follow up will continue to review the China Super Buffet cameras.

This concludes my involvement in this case.
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TALLAHASSEE POLICE DEPARTMENT
FIELD CASE REPORT
CASE#
2020-00078840

On Tuesday, May 19, 2020 at 1:40am | responded to 2698 North Monroe Street in reference to a
shooting incident that just occurred.

| arrived on scene and was directed by Sgt. Abney #234 to canvass the Circle K located at 2415 N
Monroe Street. During this time, | made contact with Steve Fairbanks (identified by his New York
Driver’s License) sitting along the sidewalk. Fairbanks advised he knew some information about the
incident that had taken place. Fairbanks stated an unnamed subject was screaming in the area of Circle
K that someone “poked out my eye!” Fairbanks stated the subject was bleeding from his face and had a
cut on his arm. Fairbanks said he saw two subjects during this time that may have been involved in the
initial attack, but he could not identify them. Fairbanks said he began to walk southbound on North
Monroe street when he started to hear gunfire. Fairbanks said he heard between six to eight shots. |
stood by with Fairbanks until Investigator Covan arrived on scene and began interviewing him.

During the investigation, | also found and guarded a dark colored bag in the Circle K parking lot that
possibly belonged to one of the involved parties. The bag was located in the southwest part of the gas
station. | was eventually relieved of this duty and released from the scene.

The entire call for service was captured on my body worn camera. Officer T. Johnson # 302 was present
with me at the scene the entire time, acting in the role of my Field Training Officer. | was relieved by
Officer Smidt #337. This concludes my involvement in this case.
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TALLAHASSEE POLICE DEPARTMENT

FIELD CASE REPORT

CASE#
2020-00078840

with this case.

On this date, | responded to the listed location for a shots fired call. | arrived on scene after several
other officers and supervisors were already on scene. | assisted with staffing the different posts around
the perimeter and ensuring the scene was properly taped off.

| then contacted On-Call Forensics and instructed them to respond to the scene. | remained on scene
until it was concluded by CIB.

My BWC was not activated as | did not have contact with any citizens. This concludes my involvement
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TALLAHASSEE POLICE DEPARTMENT
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On 05/19/2020 at approximately 01:41am, while on uniform marked patrol, | was dispatched to 2698 N
Monroe St (Super China Buffet) in request to back up Officers on scene.

Upon arrival, | was quickly tasked with blocking off the South bound lane of N Monroe St with my marked
patrol vehicle.

Once | was relieved from my traffic post, | was then tasked with providing scene security until | was relieved
from my post.

This concludes my involvement in this incident.
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TALLAHASSEE POLICE DEPARTMENT

FIELD CASE REPORT

CASE#
2020-00078840

my involvement.

This report is authored by Officer J. Scott #331.

On 5/19/2020, | was assigned to the Uniform Patrol Division of the Tallahassee Police Department in
Tallahassee, FL, in Leon County. | was assigned to the Northeast district operating a marked patrol
vehicle and wearing a standard patrol uniform. On this date, | responded to 2698 North Monroe St.
regarding shots fired. Upon my arrival, | was instructed to set a perimeter using yellow crime scene tap.
| assisted in setting up an inner perimeter using yellow crime scene tape. | then took a perimeter post in
the rear of the building at 2698 North Monroe Street to make sure unauthorized persons did not enter
the crime scene. Erica Goff with ALF Transport transported the body to the morgue. | followed Goff to
the morgue. The body was transferred to the custody of Security Officer Daemari Wade. This concluded
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TALLAHASSEE POLICE DEPARTMENT

FIELD CASE REPORT

CASE#
2020-00078840

0On 5/19/2020, | responded to the incident location to assist with a shooting investigation. Upon arrival, |
contacted Investigator Covan #368 who told me they needed a bag of property to be transported to the
owner. According to Investigator Covan, the bag belonged to the original victim from an assault that

occurred at 2683 N. Monroe Street (case 2020-00078835).

| collected the bag of personal belongings and a cell phone belonging to the victim, Richard Haines. |
transported the property to Tallahassee Memorial Hospital and delivered it to the owner in ER room #

30. A property receipt was completed and filed under this case number.

This concludes my involvement in the incident.

This investigation/encounter was recorded on my BWC and the video was uploaded under this
case number. This report was written based solely on my recollections and perceptions of the
events without having reviewed the video. Any discrepancies in the exact language, sequence

of events, etc. is unintentional.
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TALLAHASSEE POLICE DEPARTMENT
FIELD CASE REPORT
CASE#
2020-00078840

0On 05/19/2020, | (Officer Senters #756) responded to 2698 N Monroe Street (China Super Buffet) in
reference to an Officer advising shots fired. 2020-CA-1011

Upon my arrival, | observed and Officer Degraw #509 on the ground in the parking lot of
the above location. They appeared to be kneeling over a subject and handcuffing him. As | pulled up closer,
| saw a male laying face down with blood coming from his head. | exited my patrol vehicle, grabbed my
medical bag, and ran towards the officers. As | approached them, | noticed they did not appear injured, so |
asked about the male on the ground. | observed what appeared to be a gun shot wound to the head and |
saw a large knife on the ground by the male’s head. The male on the ground showed no signs of life at my
arrival.

| then removed Officer Degraw from the inner crime scene and remained with him throughout until being
relieved by an investigator at the Police Department. This concludes my involvement in the above
investigation.

This contact with citizen(s) was captured on my body worn camera (BWC). The footage was submitted per
policy. Any discrepancies between this report and the video footage are unintentional. My reports are
written to the best of my ability from my memory and the way that | perceived the events depicted.
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TALLAHASSEE POLICE DEPARTMENT
FIELD CASE REPORT
CASE#
2020-00078840

On 05/19/2020 | was dispatched to 2698 N Monroe Street (Super China Buffet) as back up to a shots fired
call.

Upon arrival, | was tasked with securing the scene. While setting up blinds to block the view of a body lying
on the ground with his hands cuffed behind his back, | noticed a sheath for a knife on a belt. | also noticed a
large fixed blade knife lying on the ground close to the head of the body. After securing the inner perimeter, |
was tasked with general scene security on the outer perimeter until | was relieved.
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TALLAHASSEE POLICE DEPARTMENT
FIELD CASE REPORT
CASE#
2020-00078840

0On 05/19/2020, | responded to the area of 2698 N. Monroe St. in reference to advising
shots fired over the radio. | responded to the incident in emergency mode and upon my arrival began to
assess the scene to see what needed to be done. Sgt. Connell (227) was on scene who assigned me to be

the accompanying officer for 2020-CA-1011
| accompanied while on scene, provided a ride to the Tallahassee Police Department and
provided him with a ride to his residence. While accompanying he did not speak with anyone

about the incident in accordance with department policy.

My body worn camera captured my initial actions on scene and was then turned off while accompanying
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TALLAHASSEE POLICE DEPARTMENT
FIELD CASE REPORT
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2020-00078840
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TALLAHASSEE POLICE DEPARTMENT

FIELD CASE REPORT

CASE#
2020-00078840

On 05/19/2020 at approximately 1:40 AM, | responded to 2698 North Monroe Street (Super China Buffet) to

assist officers with shots fired.

Upon my arrival to the scene, | was tasked with ensuring no subjects were near the outside perimeter of the
Super China Buffet. | noted a small dog (unknown type) on a leash near the entrance of the Super China
Buffett however it quickly ran away from me. Once the scene was secured, | assisted by assembling a
department issued partition to shield the deceased from the view of passing motorists.

Officers relayed over the radio about a possible witness to the shooting across the street at the Circle K. |
began speaking with the female, Deanna O’neal who advised me of the following:

She is currently homeless and has began to know a male, Richard “Jack” Haines through friends. She
described Haines as an older white male in his 60’s with a long white beard and hair. Haines was wearing
brown shorts and an unknown color shirt. At approximately 7:30 PM, she stopped by to check on Haines who
was drinking Budweiser beer at the Super China Buffet with a male she’d never seen before.

O’neal described the other male of being in his fifties with short hair (possibly balding). He was wearing a

blue button up shirt and blue jeans. The male also had a small dog with him.

The male Haines was drinking with was very rude to O’neal and was saying very vulgar things to her.

Oneal left Super China Buffet to go to the store and when she briefly returned, she noticed a white male
(described as being husky) with long white hair sitting with them. O’neal left again to go to her motel room at

the La Casa to go to sleep.

She was awoken with the word someone had been shot and believed Haines was deceased. | informed
O’neal that Haines was in fact ok and was being evaluated at the hospital. She requested his phone be

brought to him at the hospital stating “Casey” had his phone.

O’neal summoned Casey to the scene to return Haines’ phone.

| began speaking with “Casey” (later positively identified as Casey Durrance by his DAVID photo). Casey

explained the following to me:

He knows Haines through O’neal and began hanging out with Haines at the Super China Buffett along with
another male. He’d never seen the other male before, however described him as a white male being “a little
taller than him” (approximately 5’11”). The male had short hair and was possibly balding. He also advised this

male had a small dog with him.

The three began drinking at the Super China Buffett until the male with the dog thought Haines said
something about him. The unknown male began fighting with Haines by punching him multiple times with a
closed fist. The unknown male tackled Haines to the ground and began attempting to gouge his eyes. Haines
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FIELD CASE REPORT
CASE#
2020-00078840

TALLAHASSEE POLICE DEPARTMENT

(continuation)

began to scream “I can’t see”.

Durrance was able to separate the fight where the unknown male walked away, north on Monroe. Durrance
assisted Haines across the street to the Circle K to call for help. He returned back to the Super China Buffett
to gather Haines’ belongings and drop them off to Haines. He stated he did not want to stay at the Circle K

due to a previous trespass warning.

Investigator Covan arrived on scene and spoke to both O’neal and Durrance.

O’neal stated she is currently staying at the La Casa Inn room 226 however will be leaving the room in the

morning.

Durrance told me he is currently homeless and does not have a specific location. He provided a text now

number of (850)898-2615 and an email of caseydurrance668@gmail.com

All actions of mine were captured via my body worn camera. This concludes my involvement in this

investigation.

REPORTNG OFFICER DATE FELD TRAINNG OFFICER DATE

White, Joseph 691 05/19/2020 05/19/2020

REVIEWED BY DATE

Connell, Kathleen A 05/19/2020

3 OF3

TPD Case Supp 2020-00078840 Page 3 OF 3



FIELD CASE REPORT
CASE#
2020-00078840

REPORTED DATE/TIME OCCURRED INCIDENT TYPE CASE STATUS
'E 05/19/2020 01:40
W [OCCURRED FROM DATEIME OCCURRED THRU DATETIME LOCATION OF OCCURRENCE. SUPER CHINA BUFFET
o 2698 N MONROE ST

TALLAHASSEE, FL
STATUTE/DESCRIPTION COUNTS ATTEMPT/COMKMIT

»
w
7]
-
i
™
L
s}

JACKETISUBJECT TYPE NAME (LAST, FIRST, MIDOLE SUFFIX)
[ DoB AGE or AGE RANGE ADDRESS (STREET, CTY, STATE, ZIPy
[&]
w
a RACE SEX HEIGHT or RANGE 'WEIGHT or RANGE HAIR EYE
=
7]

DL NUMBER/STATE PRIMARY PHONE PHONE #2 PHONE #3

JACKET/SUBJECT TY'PE NAME (LAST, FIRST, MIDDLE SUFFIX)
[ DoB AGE or AGE RANGE ADDRESS (STREET, CTY', STATE, ZIP}
0
w
B RACE SEX HEIGHT or RANGE 'WEIGHT or RANGE HAIR EYE
=
7]

DL NUMBERISTATE PRIMARY PHONE PHONE #2 PHONE #3

JACKET/SUBJECT TYPE NAME (LAST, FIRST, MIDDLE SUFFIX)
[ DoB AGE or AGE RANGE ADDRESS (STREET, CTY", STATE, ZIF}
0
w
B RACE SEX HEIGHT or RANGE 'WEIGHT or RANGE HAIR EYE
=
7]

DL NUMBER/STATE PRIMARY PHONE PHONE #2 PHONE #3
REPORTING OFFICER DATE FIELD TRAINING OFFICER DATE REVIEWED BY DATE
Drake, AnnalLee 336 05/19/2020 05/19/2020 | Connell, Kathleen A 05/19/2020

1 OF2

TPD Case Supp 2020-00078840 Page 1 OF 2



TALLAHASSEE POLICE DEPARTMENT

FIELD CASE REPORT

CASE#
2020-00078840

On May 19, 2020 at approximately 1:40 a.m. | was sitting at 1925 N Monroe St when | heard an officer
indicate shots were fired at his location. The officer, Ofc. Degraw #509 was on a call at 2683 N Monroe St
(Circle K). Further information indicated that the officers were at Super China Buffet (2698 N Monroe St). |

responded in emergency mode and activated my body worn camera.

When | arrived, | parked at the Southern entrance to Super China Buffet’s parking lot and ran towards the
Northern entrance. | observed a white male laying on the ground with a hole in his forehead, blood on the
ground beneath his head, and blood on one of his arms. | also observed a medium sized hunting-style knife
laying near his head (the knife had a brown handle and silver blade). The male’s head was facing East and his
body was laying in the center of the Northern entrance’s driveway.

A member of the Leon County EMS was on scene. He advised the male was deceased. As the male showed no
signs of life, the knife was not moved. | observed two empty knife sheaths on the male’s waistband.

| directed two officers to clear the rest of the building. When Ofc. Taylor #712 went to the Northern side of
the building, a small black dog ran out dragging a long chain behind him. The dog barked and then ran South

and disappeared.

Ofc. White #691 and | put up the privacy screens and placed them around the body with approximately a one
foot distance between the screens and the deceased.

| observed a shell casing near the edge of the driveway by the road, as such the crime scene was expanded to
include the entirety of Southbound Monroe St. | observed a shell casing directly to the South of the deceased
and another Southwest of the deceased, both on the pavement of the driveway.

Once the crime scene was established, | deactivated my body worn camera. This was the end of my

involvement in this case.

| did not review any of my body camera footage prior to writing this report. This report was written

solely from my recollection of the incident.
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TALLAHASSEE POLICE DEPARTMENT

FIELD CASE REPORT

CASE#
2020-00078840

On March 19, 2020, at approximately 01:40 am | responded, in emergency mode, to 2698 N Monroe St (China
Super Buffet) regarding an Officer on scene with shots fired. Officers requested EMS respond in emergency
mode for a gunshot wound to the head. At 1:42 am the EMS Supervisor cancelled the responding med unit
and declared the patient deceased. When | arrived on scene, | saw a white male laying on the pavement near
the entrance to the China Super Buffet. Officer Drake #336 had security over the male and directed me to
clear the north side of the building for any additional people. | was unable to see the status of the male laying
in the parking lot or determine any injuries. | cleared the area with no additional subjects located. At the time

of this report

The crime scene was taped off and | began a crime scene log. The following individuals were in the crime

scene:

SGT Northway #210

SGT Connell #227

SGT Abney #234

SGT Papy #253

Officer Braxton #317

Officer Drake #336

Officer Schneider #377

Officer Degraw #509
2020-CA-1011

Officer Blevins #568

Officer Fischer #654

Officer Armstrong #672

Officer White #691

Officer Taylor #712

Officer Senters #756

At approximately 2:47am Forensics Tech Sitero #813 arrived on scene and began processing the scene.

2020-CA-1011

At approximately 2:51 the following CIB members responded to the scene:

Maj Johnson #107

LT Creamer #136

SGT Osborn #233
Investigator Warren #354
Investigator Bailey #735

At approximately 3:00 am the following command staff members entered the crime scene:
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TALLAHASSEE POLICE DEPARTMENT
FIELD CASE REPORT
CASE#
2020-00078840

(continuation)

Chief Revell #100

Dep Chief Laurson #101
Dep Chief Holmes #102
Maj Porter #108

Chief of Staff Suleski #114

At approximately 3:10am SGT Couch #260 and LT Shepard #120 entered the crime scene. Investigator Covan
#368 arrived at approximately 3:53.

A rotation funeral home was called to the scene to transport the body to the morgue as a Medical Examiner
case. ALG Transport, Erica Goff and Pedro Narezo, arrived on scene at approximately 5:23am and transported
the body to the morgue. At the time of this report the deceased had still not been identified. This
investigation/encounter was recorded on my BWC and the video was uploaded under this case number.
This report was written based solely on my recollections and perceptions of the events without having
reviewed the video. Any discrepancies in the exact language, sequence of events, etc. is unintentional.

For additional information regarding the incident please see the supplemental reports.
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TALLAHASSEE POLICE DEPARTMENT
FIELD CASE REPORT
CASE#
2020-00078840

On May 19, 2020, | was notified an officer involved shooting had occurred and was requested to
respond to Tallahassee Police Department headquarters. 2020-CA-1011

Upon arrival, | gathered the necessary equipment (new duty handgun) and responded to the Criminal
Investigations Bureau’s conference room.

Inside the conference room, involved 2020CA1011 CA1011 was present as well as the following:

Officer Richard Murphy (Police Benevolent
Association President), Investigator Amanda Bailey, Forensic Technician Vernon Henderson, Sergeant
Ginny Osborn, Internal Affairs Investigator Mark Adrick, Major Shane Porter, Deputy Chief Jason
Laursen, Officer Josh Armstrong (Buddy Officer), Training Section Officer Justin French.

All of the above persons were present and witnessed all of my actions and duties as | fulfilled my role as
a Training Section member responding to an officer involved shooting.

At 3:15 am, | put on fresh protective gloves as | retrieved duty pistol from the holster

| removed the magazine and safely ejected a live round out of the chamber. | placed the
pistol, live round from the pistol chamber and magazine on a paper bag (provided to me by Forensic
Technician Henderson) which was sitting on the conference table. | changed into fresh protective gloves
and began the round count of the magazine that was in the pistol. | counted aloud for all persons
present to hear and counted each round one by one. The total rounds counted in the magazine from
the pistol was 8 rounds, plus the round in the chamber, equals 9 total rounds in the pistol. After |
conducted the round count, the pistol, the live round from the chamber, the magazine and rounds from
the magazine were all turned over to Forensic Technician Henderson who collected them as evidence.

| changed into new protective gloves and removed pistol magazine that was closest to his
belt buckle from the pouch on his belt. | counted aloud each round one by one, placing them on a new
paper bag which was laying on the conference room table. The total rounds in that magazine were 15. |
turned over the 15 rounds and empty magazine to Forensic Technician Henderson who collected them
as evidence.

| changed into new protective gloves and removed pistol magazine that was furthest from
his belt buckle from the pouch on his belt. | counted aloud each round one by one, placing them on a
new paper bag which was laying on the conference room table. The total rounds in that magazine were
15. | turned over the 15 rounds and empty magazine to Forensic Technician Henderson who collected
them as evidence.

| issued CA1011 a new duty pistol, with a round in the chamber, and three full magazines
REPORTNG OFFICER DATE FELD TRAMNG QFFICER DATE REVIEEWED BY DATE
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(continuation)

Sergeant Christopher Papy downloaded issued taser

This completed the Training Sections involvement with post officer involved shooting
processing (concluded at 3:34 am).
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TALLAHASSEE POLICE DEPARTMENT
FIELD CASE REPORT
CASE#
2020-00078840

FORENSIC UNIT - SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT
2020-00078840

Report written by; Vernon L. Henderson, Forensic Specialist 11

CA1011,
2020CA1011
# OF ITEMS/AREAS PROCESSED: 48
LATENT PRINTS DEVELOPED: N/A
INCIDENT: Officer Involved Shooting

DATE: 05/19/2020

LOCATION: Tallahassee Police Department (TPD), Criminal Investigation Bureau (CIB)

conference room and 2698 North Monroe Street

As requested by Forensic Unit Supervisor S. Yao, #800, I responded to the TPD CIB

conference room for an Officer Involved Shooting/round count. Upon arrival to this location I
met with Officer CA1011, # , Inv. A. Bailey, #735, Officer ]. French, #335, Sgt. G. Osborn, #
233, Deputy Chief ]. Laursen, #101, Officer ]. Armstrong, #672 and two representatives from the

Police Benevolent Association.

I photographed CA1011. French conducted the round count. For more information on the
round count see French’s report. I photographed and collected items. See a copy of my
photographs and my TPD Property and Evidence Receipt for more information on the items I

collected.

On this same date I met with investigators and supervisors from TPD in the TPD CIB
conference room for a briefing. It was requested that several investigators and I return to the

REPORTNG OFFICER DATE FELD TRAINNG OFFICER DATE REVIEWED BY
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TALLAHASSEE POLICE DEPARTMENT
FIELD CASE REPORT

CASE#
2020-00078840

(continuation)

scene (2698 North Monroe Street) during the daylight hours to search for evidence.

I was able to locate a knife and cell phone in the ditch on the northeast corner of China Super
Buffet. Investigators were able to locate suspected bullet strikes on the wall of a building located
at 2702 North Monroe Street. This was the south wall of this building. I videotaped this scene.

I placed photo marker #14 at the knife, photo marker #15 at the cell phone and photo markers #

16-18 and scales on the suspected bullet strikes. I photographed these items.

All items collected were turned over to TPD Property and Evidence Section. This Forensic

Specialist took no further action.

REPORTHNG OFFICER
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TALLAHASSEE POLICE DEPARTMENT
FIELD CASE REPORT
CASE#
2020-00078840

CIB SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT- INVESTIGATIVE SUMMARY:

On May 19%, 2020 at 2:00 AM | was made aware of this investigation by the Violent Crime Unit
supervisor Sergeant Butler. Sergeant Butler provided me with a brief summary of an officer involved
shooting to include the location. | was assigned as the lead investigator and responded to incident
location.

The shooting occurred at 2698 North Monroe Street. 2698 North Monroe Street was the China
Super Buffet restaurant. | arrived at approximately 2:45 AM. When | arrived, | observed multiple
marked Tallahassee Police Department vehicles. A perimeter was established around the business.
Crime scene tape was used to physically mark the boundaries of the perimeter. Officer C. Taylor
maintained a crime scene log of persons who entered the perimeter.

After | arrived, | received an update from Sergeant Butler. | learned Officers E. DeGraw and

CA1011 responded to a call for service at the Circle K located at 2683 N. Monroe Street. The Circle K
was across the street from the China Super Buffet. The Circle K was on the east side of Monroe
Street while the China Super Buffet was on the west side of Monroe Street. The initial call for
service referenced an Aggravated Battery. The victim was transported to the Tallahassee Memorial
Hospital by Leon County Emergency Medical Services. The battery occurred outside the China Super
Buffet. CA1011 drove his marked police vehicle from the Circle K to the China Super Buffet
where he searched for the victim’s property. It was believed 2020-CA-01011 located the suspect
who was armed with a knife. The suspect assaulted CA1011 who in response shot the
suspect. The suspect was struck by the gunfire and died as a result.

Investigators S. Bennett, D. Covan, A. Bailey, and R. Sullivan responded to assist. Investigator K.
Isaacs would respond later to assist with this investigation. Investigator D. Covan was initially
responsible for furthering the initial Aggravated Battery investigation which necessitated the call for
service. Investigator S. Bennett responded to the Tallahassee Memorial Hospital and interviewed
the victim of the preceding aggravated battery. Investigator A. Bailey responded to the police
department and facilitated the round count procedure with involved CA1011. Investigator
A. Bailey also interviewed Officer DeGraw who initially responded to the report of the Aggravated
Battery at the Circle K. Investigator R. Sullivan canvassed and collected video evidence. Forensic
Technician J. Sitero and | examined the crime scene.

Computer Assisted Dispatch (CAD) Report Information

REPORTNG OFFICER DATE FELD TRAIMMNG OFFICER DATE REVIEWED BY DATE

Warren, Daniel 354 06/30/2020 06/30/2020| Butler, William A 06/30/2020
2 OF47

TPD Case Supp 2020-00078840 Page 2 OF 47



TALLAHASSEE POLICE DEPARTMENT
FIELD CASE REPORT
CASE#
2020-00078840

(continuation)

On May 19%, 2020, at 1:19 AM the Consolidated Dispatch Agency received a 911 call
located at 2683 North Monroe Street. 365-171(15)
The caller relayed there was a male at the business who bled from his face and requested
her to call law enforcement. At 1:27 AM, Officer E. DeGraw was dispatched to the call for service.
At 1:29 AM, Officer DeGraw arrived at the Circle K. At 1:31 AM, Officer DeGraw relayed it was safe

for Leon County Emergency Medical Services (EMS) to approach. At 1:32 AM, CA1011 was
dispatched to the Circle K as backup. CA1011 arrived at the Circle K at 1:33 AM. Leon
County EMS arrived at 1:37 AM. At 1:39 AM, CA1011 notified dispatch “shots fired.” Leon

County Medic Unit 26 requested an additional unit to respond for the Officer Involved Shooting. At
1:42 AM Medic 26 canceled the request for an additional medical unit because the suspect was
deceased. The run number (number used to associate a medical transport) for the victim for the
initial call for service was EM-20-0016974.

Victim Richard Haines

Officer E. DeGraw authored a report which documented the original complainant by Richard Haines.
Officer DeGraw noted victim Haines had blood on his knees, elbows, and around his eyes. Haines
told Officer DeGraw he knew the suspect as “William.” Haines provided a verbal summary of the
offense. Haines and “William” were across the street (from the Circle K) at the China Super Buffet
(located at 2698 North Monroe Street).

Haines said “William” had two hunting style knives attached to his hip. Haines said he witnessed
“William” use the knives to threaten others. At some point, “William” threatened Haines with one
of the knives. Specifically, Haines said “William” made the verbal threat, “I'll cut you, I'll kill you.”
Haines confronted “William” about using knives to threaten people. This caused “William” to batter
Haines. Haines defended himself and described being in a fight with “William.” During the fight
Haines said “William” used his fingers and gouged his eyes. Haines’ visible injuries were consistent
with his account. Because of the severity of the injuries, Haines was treated by Leon County EMS on
scene and transported to the Tallahassee Memorial Hospital for advanced treatment.

Officer C. Baldwin and Violent Crime Unit Investigator S. Bennett would respond to the Tallahassee
Memorial Hospital and conduct additional interviews with victim Haines. Officer Baldwin met Haines
in emergency room number 30. Officer Baldwin noted Haines bled from injuries on his left and right
hands, the upper portion of his right arm, and his left and right knees. Officer Baldwin documented
Haines was barely able to open his eyes and noted injuries which surrounded his left and right eyes.
Haines provided a consistent account of the battery to Officer Baldwin. In addition to information
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(continuation)

Haines previously provided to Officer DeGraw, Haines said the knives William possessed were in
sheaths. During the battery, Haines added how he was on the ground as it occurred. When asked
why “William” didn’t use the knives, Haines explained he physically held onto the knives (while they
were inside the sheaths) to prevent “William” from retrieving them. Haines described “William” as a
white male approximately 71 years old.

Richard Haines’ Physical Injuries

Forensic Technician K. Stevens responded to the Tallahassee Memorial Hospital and took forensic
images of victim Haines’ injuries. | reviewed the images. Victim Haines sat on a hospital bed and
had what appeared to be dried blood on his left and right knees. Abrasions were visible on each
knee and appeared to be the source of the suspected blood. Suspected dried blood was visible on
Haines’ left hand (Image: KFJ29385). Haines had what appeared to be a small laceration to the right
of his right eye. Suspected dried blood and bruising was visible on either side of Haines’ right eye.
Suspected blood was captured between the right side of Haines’ left eye and his nose. There was a
small laceration immediately left of Haines’ left eye. There was a horizontal laceration on the left
side of Haines’ face beginning at the center of the left side of his nose. The laceration continued at a
downward angle towards Haines’ mouth (Image: K5J29389).

Haines’ right hand had an abrasion and suspected dried blood between his middle finger and ring/4t"
finger (Image: K5J29390). A scaled image was taken to document the injury to Haines’ left hand.
Haines had an abrasion on his left hand above his knuckles but below his wrist; it was surrounded by
suspected blood. There was an abrasion on Haines’ left hand between his pointer finger and middle
finger (Image: K5J29392).

In addition to reviewing the forensic images taken at the hospital, | reviewed Officer DeGraw’s body
camera video footage as he was the first officer to have contact with victim Haines. Based on the
video, Haines had visible injury to both of his knees. Suspected blood was on both knees. Officer
DeGraw used a flashlight to illuminate Haines’ face. Haines left eye appeared to bleed and
suspected blood covered the left portion of Haines’ face beneath his eye and to the left of his nose.
Haines left hand appeared to be injured as suspected blood covered the center of the top of his
hand. Haines pulled up his right sleeve and had a visible injury to his right elbow also covered in
suspected blood.

Haines’ injuries as captured on Officer DeGraw’s body worn camera and in forensic images at the
hospital were consistent of his account of being battered. Moreover, the injuries inflicted to Haines’
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(continuation)

eyes support his account the suspect used his fingers to “gouge” his eyes.

Victim Casey Durrance

Investigator D. Covan contacted and interviewed Casey Durrance. Durrance was in possession of
victim Haines’ cellphone and provided it to Investigator Covan. Durrance said he was friends with
victim Haines. On the previous date between 5:30 PM and 6:00 PM Haines invited Durrance to the
China Super Buffet. Durrance learned the suspect purchased Pizzas to share. Durrance, Haines, and
the suspect “hung out” outside the front of the business. As the three men associated, the suspect
consumed multiple beers. As this progressed, Durrance said the suspect became belligerent. At
some point after the suspect became belligerent, he attempted to strike Durrance and Haines had to
intervene. Durrance described the suspect as suffering a mental health issue. Durrance described
how the suspect would speak to an imaginary person.

The suspect became verbally hostile towards Haines. Durrance said the hostility was unprovoked.
Haines verbally confronted the suspect about his aggressive actions. The suspect escalated and
physically attacked Haines. Durrance witnessed the suspect physically punch Haines repeatedly in
the face. Haines was tackled by the suspect and landed on the ground. While on the ground, the
suspect mounted Haines and stuck his thumbs into Haines’ eyes. Durrance said he believed the
suspect attempted to gouge out Haines’ eyes. Durrance verbally intervened and told the suspect
not to gouge Haines’ eyes. Haines was able to free himself and roll away from the suspect.
Thereafter, Durrance stepped between the suspect and Haines. He told the suspect the fight was
over.

Durrance physically assisted Haines across the street to the Circle K. Durrance returned to the Super
China to retrieve Haines’ belongings. When he returned, Durrance said he found a knife with a black
handle on the ground where Haines was attacked by the suspect. Durrance gathered some of
Haines’ belongings and brought them to him. Haines realized his cellular phone was missing.
Durrance returned to the China Super Buffet to collect Haines’ phone. The suspect emerged from
behind the northeast corner of the business. Durrance said the suspect had a knife in his hand. The
suspect repeatedly called Durrance a “bitch” and aggressed him with the knife in hand. The suspect
told Durrance he was going to “get him.” The suspect pointed the knife at Durrance and Durrance
believed the suspect was going to stab him. Durrance fled and walked north on Monroe Street. As
Durrance continued to walk north on Monroe Street he said he heard gunshots from the area of the
China Super Buffet. During his account, Durrance provided a description for the suspect.

REPORTNG OFFICER DATE FELD TRAIMMNG OFFICER DATE REVIEWED BY DATE
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(continuation)

Witness Interviews

Investigator Covan conducted witness interviews with Steve Fairbanks, Deanna O’Neal, and James
Grant. These were conducted on May 19, 2020. The interviews were recorded.

Witness Steve Fairbanks

Fairbanks said he was across the street from the China Super Buffet seated outside the Circle K.
Fairbanks said he heard yelling and screaming from the China Super Buffet. Fairbanks interpreted
what he heard to be a verbal altercation. Thereafter, he observed two males walk from the China
Super Buffet to the Circle K. The males were determined to be Haines Durrance. Fairbanks said one
of the males bled from his eyes. The male with the injury to his eyes said repeatedly someone tried
to poke his eyes out.

Witness Deanna O’Neal

Deanna O’Neal said her boyfriend was James Grant. O’Neal said she knew Haines. Before the
altercation O’Neal said she and Grant stopped at the China Super Buffet. O’Neal said Haines was
outside the China Super Buffet with a male unknown to her. The unknown male and Haines
consumed beers together. The unknown male was belligerent and wanted to have sex with O’Neal.
O’Neal and Grant continued to a nearby business. After they left the business, they returned to the
China Super Buffet. O’Neal spoke with Haines while Grant spoke with the unknown male.
Thereafter, they continued to walk towards their hotel and Grant told O’Neal the unknown male
“pulled a knife on him.”

Witness James Grant

Grant told Investigator Covan he was deaf. Grant’s account of movements with O’Neal were
consistent with the information provided by O’Neal. Grant said the unknown male had a dog and
Grant purchased food at the convenience store for the dog. After they returned to the China Super
Buffet from the convenience store, Grant gave the unknown male the dog food he purchased. Grant
attempted to read the unknown male’s lips but had difficulty because the unknown male smoked a
cigarette. Grant’s inability to communicate effectively with the unknown male appeared to anger
the male. The unknown male retrieved two knives and pointed them at Grant. Grant said he did not
feel threatened by the unknown male. Grant described the unknown male as a white male with a
short beard.
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Witness Paramedic Jason Perez

On May 20th, 2020, Investigator A. Bailey and | conducted a video recorded interview with Leon
County Medical Services responder Jason Perez. The interview was video recorded, and Perez was
placed under oath at the onset. Perez said he was assigned to Medic 26 at the time of the officer
involved shooting.

Perez was a certified paramedic. Perez confirmed his unit responded to the Circle K for an assault.
Perez’s partner on Medical 26 was Zane Ahmad. When Medic 26 arrived, Perez observed a male
with blood on his face and knees speaking with two Tallahassee Police Officers (Officers DeGraw
and CA1011). Perez was present and heard the male victim explain to officers he was assaulted, the
suspect took some of the victim’s belongings, and that he needed medical care. Perez said he heard
the patient tell officers the suspect was armed with a knife and attempted to kill him. Perez knew
the patient was concerned over the whereabouts of his phone. Perez was unable to recall the name
of the victim/patient. Perez said Medic 26 transported the patient to the Tallahassee Memorial for
treatment.

| asked Perez if he recalled anything significant that occurred before the transport. Perez reiterated
what he had told me but added additional information. After the patient referenced the loss of his
phone, Perez said one of the TPD officers said he would look for the missing phone. That officer

( CA1011) drove across the street (to the China Super Buffet). The other TPD officer (Officer
DeGraw) remained with the victim and Medic 26. Perez escorted the patient to the ambulance.
Perez was outside of the ambulance when he heard “three shots or so.” When this occurred, the
patient and Ahmad were inside the ambulance. Perez said he pondered, “what was that noise.” He
then heard “get on the ground get on the ground.” Perez heard “three or four more shots.” After
the gunshots, the officer who remained with Medic 26 left to assist the officer who drove across the
street.

Perez said he realized what occurred, notified dispatch, and requested a second Medic unit to
respond to assist. Perez retrieved his medical equipment and walked to the China Super Buffet.
When he arrived, he said a female TPD supervisor (Sergeant Connell) told Perez not to touch the
person who was shot as he was deceased. Perez said he observed a gunshot to the deceased’s head
and he was “obviously signal seven (code for deceased person).” Perez said when he went to the
China Super Buffet and approached the deceased, he observed a knife on the ground next to him.
Perez said when he arrived at the China Super Buffet, he described seeing four TPD officers. Perez
said two of the officers were the two officers he had initial contact with at the Circle K for the
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original assault call (Officer DeGraw and CA1011).

Based on what Perez witnessed he told me he concluded the suspect remained concealed in the
bushes and attacked the TPD officer with the knife. It was clear Perez did not witness this but
concluded this based on his observations and information provided by victim Haines.

Photo Lineups

| requested Investigator R. Sullivan to create a photographic lineup to include Wilbon Woodard.
Woodard was identified as the suspect who was shot by CA1011. Woodard matched the
description of the suspect who attacked victim Haines. Investigator Sullivan provided lineup
packets to Investigator K. Isaacs. Investigator K. Isaacs had not participated in the investigation to
this point and her first assignment was to present the independent lineups to victim Haines and
Durrance. Investigator Isaacs did not know Woodard’s identity when she presented the lineups.
Durrance positively identified Woodard as the suspect who battered Haines and who assaulted him
with a knife. The process was recorded.

Despite the injury to his eyes, Haines said he wanted to view the lineups. Haines was unable to
make an identification and complained of difficulty being able to see due to his injuries. The process
was recorded.

Disposition of Original Call for Service (TPD 20-078835)

Based on the facts and circumstances, Woodard and Haines congregated at the China Super Buffet
where they consumed Pizza and alcoholic beverages together. At some point Haines invited
Durrance to the China Super Buffet to join them. Durrance responded to the closed business and
congregated with Haines and Woodard. As they socialized, O’'Neal and Grant stopped by on their
way to a convenience store. At the store, they purchased dog food and returned to the China Super
Buffet. Grant provided the dog food to Woodard. At some point Woodard became frustrated and
pointed two knives at Grant. Despite Woodard’s actions, Grant said he was not fearful. O’Neal and
Grant left the China Super Buffet.

Woodard became increasingly belligerent and verbally attacked Haines. Ultimately Woodard
repeatedly punched Haines in the face and tackled him to the ground. This was witnessed by
Durrance. As the attack continued, Woodard forced his thumbs into Haines’ eye sockets. Haines
freed himself and Woodard pursued him. Durrance stepped between Woodard and Haines to
prevent any further attack. Durrance assisted Haines across Monroe Street to the Circle K parking
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lot to seek assistance.

Durrance returned to the China Super Buffet to retrieve Haines’ property. As he searched for
Haines’ cellular phone, Woodard emerged from behind the northeast corner of the business armed
with a knife. Woodard threatened Durrance with the knife and Durrance fled from the area.

Officer DeGraw and Leon County Emergency Medical Services respond. Haines had visible injuries
consistent with the attack as described by Haines and Durrnace. Those injuries were captured on
body worn camera and by forensic images taken at the Tallahassee Memorial Hospital. Woodard
was positively identified in an independent lineup by Durrance. Physical evidence discovered during
the on-scene investigation for the Officer Involved Shooting included displaced items and suspected
blood as evidence of the attack. The pizza boxes, discarded beer cans, and dog food corroborated
the circumstances which surrounded the attack. Woodard was found with two knife sheaths and a
knife next to his person which supported the information provided to investigators.

Based on the evidence obtained in the investigation of the reported incident which precipitated the
officer involved shooting, probable cause would have existed to charge Woodard with Aggravated
Battery pursuant to FSS: 784.045 for inflicting great bodily harm on Haines to include diminishing his
ability to see. Probable cause would have existed to charge Woodard with Aggravated Assault with
a Deadly Weapon for using a knife to threaten to “get” Durrance. The investigation is Exceptionally
Cleared- Death of Offender.

Video Footage from the Circle K (2683 North Monroe Street)

Investigator R. Sullivan obtained the video footage for the Circle K pursuant to this investigation.
The footage was impounded as evidence. The footage included recordings from twelve different
cameras. Only three of the cameras captured the exterior of the business and had relevance to this
investigation. | reviewed the footage and summarized it below. The times are based on the
displayed time within the footage.

“Front Walk Camera” (South East field of view):
- 1:29:16 Haines approached the curb in front of the Circle K
- 1:29:37 Haines sought assistance from an unknown black male
“Pumps One Camera” (Due West field of view):

- 1:18:21 Haines first appeared and walked into Circle K parking lot from the area behind
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between the northernmost gas pumps

1:18:36 Haines bent over near the pumps like he was injured; he turned and walked away
from the business but then returned

1:21:15 Haines appeared at a distance from the Circle K and called to the Circle K employee
who was outside the business

1:22:15 Haines bent over like he was injured and remained at the northern portion of the
Circle K driveway

1:22:37 Haines walked beyond the camera’s field of view

1:28:58 Haines returned to the field of view

1:29:08 Haines approached the entrance to the business and looked backwards

1:29:11 Haines walked beyond the camera’s field of view towards the business
“Pumps Two Camera” (North West field of view):

1:18:14 Haines entered the field of view onto the Circle K property

1:18:20 Haines appeared to put his right hand over face

1:18:27 Haines turned and walked away from the business

1:18:36 Haines bent over like he was injured then walked outside field of view

1:21:13 Haines returned to the field of view

1:21:30 Haines placed both hands in area of his eyes

1:21:42 Haines steadied himself on a trash receptacle near pump 9 and repeatedly touched
area of eyes with hands

1:22:15 Haines walked north and bent over like he was injured
1:22:35 Haines walked beyond the field of view
1:23:50 Haines appeared to walk west towards the bus stop bench area (on Monroe Street)

1:28:57 Haines returned to area of Circle K gas pumps and walked towards entrance of Circle
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K

1:29:06 Haines looked behind him

1:29:12 A Tallahassee Police patrol vehicle pulled into Circle K driveway (Officer DeGraw)
1:29:31 Haines walked with an unknown black male towards Officer DeGraw’s vehicle

1:29:50 Officer DeGraw exited the patrol vehicle and met Haines; Haines and Officer DeGraw
walked towards the patrol vehicle while the unknown black male walked away

1:33:55 A second marked patrol vehicle arrived (Officer )
1:34:07 The second patrol vehicle parked next to pump 13 and Officer exited
1:34:22 Officer walked to Officer McGraw’s patrol vehicle and met with Officer

McGraw and victim Haines

1:36:21 Leon County EMS arrived

1:36:55 Officer turned and walked towards his vehicle
1:37:05 Officer entered his patrol vehicle

1:37:12 EMS contacted Officer DeGraw and victim Haines

1:37:30 Officer drove out of the Circle K parking lot west bound across Monroe Street
towards China Super Buffet

1:37:50 Officer patrol vehicle lights were no longer visible

1:38:11 Haines followed EMS to the ambulance

1:38:27 Officer DeGraw stood outside the ambulance

1:38:53 Officer DeGraw ran from the ambulance west towards China Super Buffet
1:39:05 Officer DeGraw was beyond the field of view

1:40:21 Additional patrol vehicles with emergency lights activated travel north bound and
turn into China Super Buffet
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- 1:40:29 EMS personnel with bag (medical) walked west towards China Super Buffet

The video footage from the Circle K support Haines” account of events after he fled from the China
Super Buffet after the attack. Haines appeared injured based on his movements. Haines requested
Circle K personnel to summon law enforcement and report the attack.

The video footage captured events relevant to the Officer Involved Shooting. Based on the video
Officer DeGraw arrived at 1:29:12. After arrival, Officer DeGraw met with victim Haines. Officer
arrived at 1:33:55; 4 minutes and 43 seconds after Officer DeGraw arrived. Officer

approached Officer DeGraw and victim Haines. 2020-CA-01011 was in a place where he could hear
the information Haines provided to Officer DeGraw about the attack. At 1:37:30, 3 minutes and 45
seconds after he arrived, Officer left the Circle K and drove towards the China Super Buffet. At
1:37:50 the head and tail/brake lights on Officer vehicle were no longer visible after it appeared
to enter the China Super Buffet parking lot. At 1:38:53, 1 minute and 3 seconds after the head and
tail/brake lights on Officer vehicle were no longer visible, Officer DeGraw ran from the
ambulance parked at the Circle K towards the China Super Buffet. Officer DeGraw’s actions were
indictive of being made aware of the officer involved shooting and responding to the area/ China
Super Buffet.

Body Worn Camera Footage

As part of this investigation | reviewed the body worn camera footage for officers who responded to
the officer involved shooting. Footage was uploaded and associated to CN: 20-00078835 and
20-00078840. 20-00078835 was the case number associated to the original call for service while
20-00078840 was associated specifically to the investigation of Officer shooting. During the
review, Officers DeGraw and were captured in each other’s footage. The footage
demonstrated both officers wore standard issue department uniforms. The uniforms include a
prominent police department badge and police department shoulder patches. Based on their dress,
Officer DeGraw and Officer were visually recognizable as uniformed police officers.

Officer E. DeGraw (BWC) Axon Flex 2 X83042536

Officer DeGraw’s body worn camera footage for this investigation began on May 19t, 2020 at 1:29
AM. The footage was 17 minutes and 4 seconds in length. It was uploaded on May 19, 2020 at
5:11 AM. GPS data was associated to the video. The start location for the recording was
approximated to be 2701 N Monroe Street. The GPS data recorded the movements of Officer
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DeGraw which included crossing North Monroe Street to the area of the China Super Buffet.

At plus 20 seconds Officer DeGraw pulled his patrol vehicle into the Circle K parking lot. At plus 30
seconds the audio was activated. This was consistent with the 30 second buffer enabled on all
Tallahassee Police Department body worn cameras. At plus 40 seconds Officer DeGraw had contact
with victim Haines. Victim Haines immediately stated, “there’s a knife over there.”

Haines was accompanied by the unidentified black male who walked from the area. Officer DeGraw
walked with Haines to the area of his patrol vehicle. Haines’ injuries were visible in the footage.
Haines’ told Officer DeGraw, “he jumped on me” and “he pulled a knife he has two buck knives on
him (plus 57 seconds)”. Haines detailed the manner in which he was attacked. Haines specified how
“he” the suspect used his fingers to “poke my eyes out” (plus 1 minute and 9 seconds).

Haines pointed to the area of the China Super Buffet and told Officer DeGraw the suspect was
located there. Officer DeGraw requested EMS to respond and described Haines’ injuries. (plus 1
minute and 39 seconds). When Officer DeGraw asked Haines the location of the suspect, Haines
responded “that abandon building over there, that restaurant Chinese” (plus 2 minutes and 7
seconds). Haines added the suspect was outside the building. Haines continued to provide an
account of what occurred. This included how the suspect threatened “the black guy with his knife”
(plus 2 minutes and 25 seconds). Haines told Officer DeGraw the unidentified black male who
accompanied him and walked off was the person who the suspect threatened with a knife (plus 2
minutes and 34 seconds).

Haines explained he encouraged the suspect not to threaten others which lead to the suspect
attacking him. Haines reiterated how the suspect was armed with two knives. During the attack
Haines said the suspect attempted to retrieve a knife. Officer DeGraw requested a backup officer
via radio (plus 2 minutes and 59 seconds). Haines provided Officer DeGraw with a description of the
suspect. Haines provided additional details of the events which occurred before and during the
attack (plus 5 minutes and 0 seconds).

Officer arrived and stood next to Officer DeGraw’s patrol vehicle while Haines continued to
detail the attack (plus 5 minutes and 15 seconds). Officer was able to overhear the details of
the attack as conveyed to Officer DeGraw by victim Haines after this point. Haines told Officer
DeGraw the armed suspect said, “I'll cut you, I'll kill you.” Officer DeGraw asked Haines if the
suspect had the knives in his hands when the threat was made, and Haines responded affirmatively.
Officer DeGraw summarized the details of the attack as conveyed by Haines. Haines confirmed the
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details were accurate and reiterated how the suspect injured his eyes during the attack. Haines told
Officer DeGraw the suspect’s name was “William” (plus 6 minutes and 18 seconds).

Officer DeGraw asked Haines for his personal identifying and contact information. This included a
request for Haines’ phone number. Haines told Officer DeGraw his phone was “over there” and
referenced the China Super Buffet (plus 6 minutes and 47 seconds). Officer DeGraw asked Officer
if he would mind going to the China Super Buffet. Officer asked Officer DeGraw for suspect
information; “what’s your suspect” (plus 7 minutes and 15 seconds). Officer DeGraw described the
suspect to 2020-CA-01011. Officer asked victim Haines information about his missing phone.
Victim Haines asked Officer , “go find my phone please” (plus 7 minutes and 50 seconds).
Officer walked from Officer DeGraw’s patrol vehicle towards his patrol vehicle. Officer
DeGraw told Haines EMS had arrived.

Officer DeGraw provided responding EMS personnel with an overview of victim Haines’ injuries and
the manner in which they were inflicted. Officer patrol vehicle drove out of the field of view
of Officer DeGraw’s body camera (plus 8 minutes and 16 seconds). EMS used a light to illuminate
Haines’ eyes and immediately requested to transport him to the hospital. Haines reiterated he
wanted his phone before he was transported. Officer DeGraw followed Haines to the ambulance
(plus 9 minutes and 24 seconds).

Loud shouting can be heard in the background (Officer ) and Officer DeGraw told EMS he was
going to “run across the street” (plus 9 minutes 45 seconds). As Officer DeGraw walked west
towards the China Super Buffet additional shouting was recorded. The command “drop it now!”
was clearly distinguished (plus 9 minutes and 48 seconds). Two gunshots were clearly distinguished
(plus 9 minutes and 49 seconds). Officer DeGraw increased his speed and ran towards the China
Super Buffet. Two additional gun shots were clearly distinguished (plus 9 minutes and 50 seconds).
Officer DeGraw continued to run towards the China Super Buffet. Three additional distinguishable
gunshots are heard (plus 9 minutes and 54 seconds).

Officer DeGraw radioed “shots fired” and provided the location as the China Super Buffet. Officer
DeGraw ran across North Monroe Street (plus 9 minutes and 57 seconds) as he made the radio
transmission. Officer DeGraw arrived in the northern drive to the China Super Buffet and used his
flashlight to illuminate the area. A white male was captured on the ground. Officer DeGraw asked

Officer , “you got him?” Officer responded, “l got him” (plus 10 minutes and 8
seconds). Officer said “there’s the knife right there. He just ran at me with the knife” (plus 10
minutes and 12 seconds). Officer DeGraw asked Officer if he was “alright.” Officer
responded
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affirmatively and added “he wouldn’t show me his hands.”

Officer DeGraw donned department provided latex gloves. Officer asked if EMS was going to
respond. Officer DeGraw radioed the need for EMS to respond (plus 10 minutes 46 seconds).
Officer DeGraw used a flashlight to illuminate the suspect. The suspect laid on his left side with his
left arm extended above his head. A straight edged knife with a brown handle was on the ground
next to the suspect’s extended left arm. A pool of suspected blood was on the ground adjacent to
the suspect’s head (plus 10 minutes and 54 seconds).

Officer DeGraw secured the suspect in handcuffs (plus 11 minutes and 28 seconds). Additional patrol
vehicles with activated emergency lights and sirens arrived (plus 11 minutes and 36 seconds). Patrol
supervisor Sergeant K. Connell asked what they needed to look for (plus 11 minutes and 50
seconds). Officer informed Sergeant Connell there were no outstanding suspects and
explained the suspect “ran at me with a knife.” Officer DeGraw stated EMS arrived (plus 12 minutes
and 11 seconds). Officer DeGraw relayed the suspect had a “GSW” (gunshot wound) to the head.
Sergeant Connell told EMS they did not need to touch the suspect and implied he was deceased.

Officer DeGraw relayed information to Sergeant Connell about the size and location of the crime
scene. Sergeant Connell asked Officer DeGraw if he was involved. Officer DeGraw explained he was
not involved (did not discharge his firearm) (plus 12 minutes and 30 seconds). Sergeant Connell
ordered a buddy officer be assigned to Officer . Officer Armstrong was assigned as Officer
buddy officer. Officer DeGraw was told by Sergeant Connell to remain outside the crime scene
where he remained. Officer DeGraw was initially assigned a buddy officer. Officer Perea remained
with Officer DeGraw outside the established crime scene. Patrol supervisor Sergeant D. Northway
gave Officer DeGraw permission to stop his body worn camera (plus 17 minutes and 3 seconds).

Officer 2020-CA-1011

Officer had two separate body worn camera videos relevant to this investigation. The first
began on May 19%, 2020 at 1:34 AM. The footage was 3 minutes and 28 seconds in length. It was
uploaded on May 19, 2020 at 3:37 AM. No GPS data was captured.

Officer parked his marked patrol vehicle at the Circle K (plus 20 seconds). At plus 30 seconds
the audio was activated. This was consistent with the minus 30 second buffer enabled on all
Tallahassee Police Department body worn cameras. Officer DeGraw asked victim Haines, “did he
pull the knife on you or not.” Haines responded affirmatively (plus 35 seconds). Officer DeGraw
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asked Haines what “he” the suspect said. Haines responded (the suspect said) “I'll cut you I’ll kill
you.” Officer DeGraw summarized the suspect’s actions to include threatening Haines while armed
with a knife and threatening “I'll cut you I'll kill you” (plus 54 seconds). The injuries to Haines’ knees
were captured and visible to Officer based on the field of view from his body worn camera.
Haines provided additional details of the attack. This included how the suspect used his fingers to
gouge Haines’ eyes. Officer DeGraw reassured Haines medical services were on their way (plus 1
minute and 14 seconds).

Officer DeGraw asked Haines the whereabouts of the suspect. Haines said the suspect was outside
the China Super Buffet beneath the overhang (plus 1 minute 28 seconds). Haines said he believed
the suspect’s name was “William.” Officer DeGraw asked Haines for identifying and contact
information. When asked about a phone number, Haines explained his phone was still at the China
Super Buffet (plus 2 minutes 11 seconds). Officer DeGraw asked Officer if he would go to the
Super Chinese Buffet. Officer asked Haines if the suspect was at the restaurant “right

here” (plus 2 minutes and 31 seconds). Officer asked Officer DeGraw information about the
suspect. Officer DeGraw described the suspect for Officer (plus 2 minutes 34 seconds). Officer
asked Haines information about his phone. Haines described his phone.

Officer radioed that EMS arrived (plus 3 minutes 13 seconds). Officer walked back to his
patrol vehicle. Officer entered his patrol vehicle (plus 3 minutes 15 seconds). Officer

was inside his patrol vehicle and stopped the recording function of his body worn camera (plus 3
minutes 28 seconds).

Officer second body worn camera video began on May 19", 2020 at 1:38 AM. It was 3
minutes and 49 seconds in length. It was uploaded on May 19, 2020 at 3:39 AM. No GPS data was
captured.

Officer exited his patrol vehicle parked outside the China Super Buffet (plus 1 second). Officer
walked beneath the overhang outside the main entrance to the China Super Buffet and used a
flashlight to illuminate the area (plus 4 seconds). 2020-CA-01011 illumined the area south of the
main entrance where an overturned ashtray and objects were scattered on the ground. Officer
continued and observed the items immediately outside the doors to the restaurant. He continued
to use his flashlight to illuminate the area (plus 14 seconds). Officer turned towards the north
east corner of the building and used his flashlight to illuminate the area (plus 22 seconds). At plus
30 seconds the audio was activated. This was consistent with the minus 30 second buffer enabled
on
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all Tallahassee Police Department body worn cameras.

Officer used his flashlight to illuminate the shrubbery which paralleled the front northern side
of the business. Officer directed his light held in his left hand towards the northeastern
corner. 2020-CA-01011 gave the verbal command to “come out” (plus 31 seconds). Officer
adjusted his body position and a white male (suspect) was captured at the northeastern corner of
the business. The suspect’s left leg, upper torso, and head were now visible. The male said “what”
to Officer . Officer told the suspect, “you’re hiding behind some bushes staring at

me” (plus 36 seconds).

The suspect said something to Officer . Most of the male’s statement to Officer was
uninterpretable (plus 45 seconds). Officer stepped toward the corner of the business where
the suspect was partially concealed. Officer asked the suspect, “why are you hiding in bushes
starring at me?” Officer ordered the suspect to “come out” (plus 48 seconds). Officer

walked north and used his light to illuminate the suspect. Most of the suspect was visible except for
his right hand which was concealed by the shrubbery. Officer ordered the suspect to “step
out” (plus 50 seconds).

The suspect used his left hand and motioned towards Officer like he invited him to step closer.
Officer told the suspect to “step out.” The suspect’s right hand remained concealed. Officer
ordered the suspect to “get your hand out of the bush right now” (plus 52 seconds). The suspect
stepped towards Officer (plus 53 seconds). Officer ordered the suspect to “get your
hand out of the bush” (plus 55 seconds). The suspect increased his speed and charged towards
Officer

Officer stepped backwards and ordered the suspect who charged at him to “drop the
(uninterpretable).” Officer gave the command for the suspect who charged him to “drop the
knife drop the knife right now” (plus 58 seconds). Officer ordered the suspect twice more to
drop the knife and fired two rounds from his handgun at him (1 minute 0 seconds). Officer
radioed “shots fired!” (plus 1 minute 2 seconds). Officer continued to walk backwards from
the suspect and fired two additional rounds. The suspect continued to run at Officer and said
(uninterpretable) “I'll kill yea” (plus 1 minute 5 seconds). The suspect decreased his distance from
Officer . Officer fired three more times at the suspect (plus 1 minute and 6 seconds).
Officer radioed “shots fired” (plus 1 minute and 7 seconds).

Officer used his handgun and covered the suspect. Officer DeGraw arrived and asked Officer
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if he “got him” (plus 1 minute 20 seconds). Officer activated his weapon mounted light
attached to his issued handgun to illuminate the area. The suspect was recorded on the ground with
apparent blood near his head. There were no other persons present in the area as recorded in the
video. 2020-CA-01011 told Officer DeGraw, “knifes right there. He ran at me with the knife” (plus 1
minute and 23 seconds). Officer DeGraw asked 2020-CA-01011 if he was “alright.” 2020-CA-01011
responded, “yea I’'m fine he ran at me with a knife” (plus 1 minute and 29 seconds). 2020-CA-01011
continued to cover the suspect with his handgun while Officer DeGraw retrieved gloves. 2020-
CA-01011 breathed heavily in the footage. Officer DeGraw reassured 2020-CA-01011 “you’re good.
It’s ok” (plus 1 minute and 48 seconds).

2020-CA-01011 asked Officer DeGraw if “EMS is just fucking standing there.” Officer DeGraw
radioed for EMS to respond. 2020-CA-01011 activated his weapon mounted light for Officer
DeGraw. When this occurred, the knife became visible and was on the ground next to the suspect
(plus 2 minutes and 1 second). 2020-CA-01011 stepped towards the suspect’s head and maintained
cover with his handgun while Officer DeGraw secured the suspect in handcuffs (plus 2 minutes and
12 seconds). As Officer DeGraw secured the suspect into handcuffs, an apparent gunshot wound
was visible on the top of the suspect’s head (plus 2 minutes and 15 seconds). After the suspect was
secured in handcuffs, 2020-CA-01011 holstered his handgun (plus 2 minutes and 42 seconds).

Additional patrol vehicles arrived with their sirens and emergency lights activated. 2020-CA-01011
radioed the suspect was “ten-fifteen (secured in handcuffs/underarrest), he’s in handcuffs, and got
a gunshot to the head” (plus 2 minutes and 50 seconds). Patrol supervisor Sergeant Connell arrived
and asked 2020-CA-01011 “what else do we need to be looking for.” 2020-CA-01011 responded,
“this is it right here.” Officer Connell asked, “he did it himself?” 2020-CA-01011 responded, “no- he
ran at me with a knife, so | had to shoot him” (plus 3 minutes 2 seconds). Sergeant Connell ordered
2020-CA-01011 a “buddy” officer and told him not to leave Officer side. Officer

assigned buddy officer was Officer Armstrong. 2020-CA-01011 told Officer Armstrong he was
unsure if he should deactivate his body worn camera. Officer Armstrong told 2020-CA-01011 he
thought he could deactivate his camera (plus 3 minutes and 49 seconds).

Radio Transmissions

| obtained and reviewed the recordings for the radio traffic relevant to the officer involved shooting.
The relevant communications occurred on the North West (NW) radio channel. The relevant
transmissions occurred between 1:30 AM and 1:57 AM. | summarized the relevant transmissions

REPORTNG OFFICER

Warren, Daniel 354

DATE

06/30/2020

FELD TRAIMMNG OFFICER

DATE

06/30/2020

REVIEWED BY DATE

Butler, William A 06/30/2020

180F47

TPD Case Supp 2020-00078840 Page 18 OF 47



TALLAHASSEE POLICE DEPARTMENT
FIELD CASE REPORT
CASE#
2020-00078840

(continuation)

below:

- Officer DeGraw (P509) radioed for dispatch (1:30:39)

- Officer DeGraw radioed dispatch and requested EMS, advised it was safe to approach and
described the victim and his injuries (1:30:45)

- Dispatch radioed a summary of the victim’s description and it was safe for EMS to approach
(1:30:55)

- Officer DeGraw reiterated Haines’ injuries via radio (1:31:03)

- Sergeant Connell (P227) radioed Officer DeGraw and asked if he needed a second officer
(1:31:57)

- Officer DeGraw responded to Sergeant Connell affirmatively (1:32:04)

- Officer Senters (P756) radioed he would respond (1:32:07)

- 2020-CA-01011 radioed Officer Senters to cancel and he would be enroute (1:32:12)

- Dispatch radioed Officer Senters and asked if he was enroute to Officer DeGraw (1:32:22)

- Officer Senters advised dispatch 2020-CA-01011 canceled him (1:32:27)

- 2020-CA-01011 radioed dispatch and advised EMS arrived (1:36:56)

- 2020-CA-01011 activated his radio, but no audible transmission was made (1:36:57)

- Officer DeGraw radioed “shots fired gonna be at the China Country Buffet” (1:39:02 AM)

- Dispatch gave traffic for the radio channel and announced it was for 2020-CA-01011 and
DeGraw reference to shots fired (1:39:13)

- Officer Fischer (P654) requested the call (1:39:27)

- Officer DeGraw radioed dispatch they needed EMS to respond in emergency mode
(1:39:48)

- Officer Senters radioed dispatch he arrived, radioed Officer DeGraw, and asked him his
location (1:39:52)

- Officer DeGraw radioed Officer Senters and said he was in the “parking lot China Super
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Buffet” (1:39:55)
- Sergeant Northway (P210) radioed dispatch he was enroute to Officer DeGraw (1:40:13)
- Sergeant Connell radioed dispatch she arrived (1:40:37)

- 2020-CA-01011 radioed dispatch “he’s ten-fifteen, he’s in handcuffs, he’s got gunshot to the
head, multiple other gunshots” (1:40:41)

- Sergeant Northway radioed dispatch reference being released from his previous call
(1:41:58)

- Sergeant Papy (P253) radioed dispatch he arrived (1:42:29)

- Officer Armstrong (P672) radioed dispatch additional officers did not need to respond in
emergency mode (1:43:28)

- Officer Braxton (P317) radioed dispatch he arrived (1:43:49)
- Sergeant Northway radioed to Sergeant Connell (1:48:43)
- Sergeant Northway radioed dispatch (1:51:49)

- Sergeant Northway radioed to dispatch responding officers were to meet at the command
post located in the Denny’s parking lot (1:51:54)

- Sergeant Connell radioed dispatch to cancel emergency traffic for the radio channel (1:56:29)

Dispatch radios all units on the channel and advised emergency traffic was clear (1:56:40)
DlscreLanmes in Time and Time-Dri

Significant evidence as to the chronological events which occurred before, during, and after the
officer involved shooting were obtained in the form of radio traffic/transmissions (used to create the
CAD report) and officer body worn camera footage. During the review of the previously referenced
evidence, discrepancies in time stamps were discovered. To illustrate, based on body worn camera
footage, Officer DeGraw radioed dispatch at 1:30:39 AM (plus 1 minute and 39 seconds) and
requested EMS. Based on the radio transmission and associated metadata, Officer DeGraw made
the request for EMS at 1:30:45 AM. Likewise, based on his body worn camera footage 2020-
CA-01011 radioed dispatch at 1:40:50 AM (plus 2 minutes and 50 seconds) and relayed the suspect’s
condition. Based on the radio transmission and associated metadata, 2020-CA-01011 radioed the
suspect’s
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condition at 1:40:41 AM.

To summarize, Officer DeGraw’s body worn camera timestamps and Officer timestamps
differed from the timestamps associated to the radio communications. In the previous
illustration, Officer DeGraw had a 6 second difference while 2020-CA-01011 had a 9 second
difference. During a previous investigation, contact was made with Axon reference to time
disparities in their manufactured body worn cameras. Axon provided an email response which
explained based on natural clock drift, the internal clock could drift up to plus or minus 2 minutes
per month. This explanation was consistent with the 6 and 9 second disparities observed in this
investigation.

Crimes E I fosa

Forensic Technician Sitero responded to the China Super Buffet after the officer involved shooting
and documented the crime scene with forensic images. In addition, the department’s FARO system
was used to document the scene and create a 3-D rendering. | examined the scene and searched for
evidence.

The China Super Buffet was located on the western side of North Monroe Street. There was a
driveway located at the northern side of the property. The driveway adjoined North Monroe Street
to the parking lot for the business. The initial driveway was perpendicular with North Monroe Street
but curved southward. It passed beneath the covered entrance to the business. The front parking
lot for the business was located south of the covered entrance. There was a parking lot in front of
the business (east). There was a side parking lot located on the southern side of the business. The
side and front parking lots were adjoined. There was a southern driveway which adjoined North
Monroe Street to the side (southern) parking lot. There was a rear parking lot located behind (west)
of the building. It was connected to the southern parking lot. North of the building was a thin tree-
line and water drainage area that separated the China Super Buffet from the adjacent business. The
tree-line included trees which exceeded the two-story business in height as well as shorter trees and
shrubbery. The shrubbery continued across portions of the front (eastern) side of the business and
was decorative.

The business was closed and there was no external lighting. There was minimal natural light due to
the time of night. Due to the lack of lighting, Forensic Technician Sitero and | had to use flashlights
to search the scene for evidence.

Recovered Ballistic Evidence
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Four fired .40 caliber cartridge casings were recovered on the northern driveway to the business.
Evidence markers 1-4 were used to mark their locations in the forensic images. There was a marked
patrol vehicle parked on the northern driveway for the business. The patrol car was parked south of
where the four fired cartridge casings were recovered. A department issued medical bag was on the
hood of the car. A fifth fired cartridge casing was located on the northern driveway to the business.
Evidence marker 5 was used to mark its location. Two additional fired cartridge casings were
discovered further west on the northern driveway. Evidence markers 6 and 7 were used to mark
their locations. The deceased suspect was on the ground between recovered cartridge cases 1-4
and 6-7. All seven cartridge casings were chambered for .40 caliber. All seven cartridge casings had
“WIN 40 S&W” headstamps. This is consistent with Tallahassee Police Department issued handgun
ammunition.

The positioning of the recovered fired cartridge casings and the deceased were indicators of the
movements by the deceased and 2020-CA-01011. Recovered cartridge casing 6-7 were located
behind (west) of the deceased while recovered cartridge casings 1-4 were recovered in front (east)
of the deceased. The positioning supports the deceased moved beyond or past the point where the
cartridge casings 6-7 landed after being fired. The positioning of the spent cartridges also supports
2020-CA-01011, who fired the spent cartridge casings, moved east or away from the deceased after
he fired. It should be noted the northern driveway where the cartridge casings and the deceased
were discovered has a downward angle which degrades from the business to the roadway.

No projectiles were recovered during the on-scene examination. Due to the time of night, a
subsequent search was conducted during daylight hours. No projectiles were discovered during the
subsequent daylight search.

Additional Crime Scene Examination and Evidence

Outside the main entrance to the business beneath the overhang, various items were located. The
items appeared to be transient possessions. Linens for a makeshift bed were immediately outside
the main entrance to the business. Partially eaten individual pieces of pizza were on the ground
outside the area of the main entrance. A package of dog treats was tucked into a cinder block in the
same area as the pizza and linens. Individual dog treats were on the ground in this area as well as
discarded containers. To the south of the main entrance was an overturned ashtray. A pizza box
and a roll of toilet paper were on the ground. Personal hygiene items were also discovered in this
area. On the lip of the southwestern most support beam for the overhang/awning was a package of
cigarettes, an umbrella, and an additional roll of toilet paper. Of significance, a straight edged knife
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with a black handle was also discovered there.

To the south of the southwestern support beam was a designated area for landscape. The wooden
barriers used to contain the landscaping was displaced. A leaf with suspected blood was discovered
on the ground adjacent to the displaced wooden barriers. Six discarded beer cans were located
outside the business entrance and to the immediate south near the displaced wooden landscape
barriers.

The area immediately north of the business was also searched. This included a designated drainage
area that was concealed in part by tree-line; the drainage area was perpendicular to the front of the
business (east/west orientation). During a search of this area, a box believed to contain fecal matter
and used toilet paper was discovered. A makeshift bed was located further west against the
northern most wall of the business. The back panel for a cellular phone was discovered on a brick on
the northern exterior wall of the business. The cellular phone back had blue tape and the number
“274-3110” written on it in black marker. It should be noted this was similar with a handwritten
document later discovered in Woodard’s wallet (blue tape with black marker with Woodard’s
handwritten social security number).

A black suitcase was located concealed in the tree-line immediately north of the business. The
suitcase contained folded clothing, belt buckle, hair clippers, a phone charger, a pair of scissors, and
three fixed blade knives. The recovered suitcase and cellphone backing were believed to belong to
Woodard.

Examination and ldentification of the Deceased

The deceased was on the northern driveway of the business. Department visual barriers were used
to mask the deceased from the motoring public on North Monroe Street. The deceased laid on his
stomach with his head oriented towards North Monroe Street with his feet towards the business.
The deceased was positioned at a slight angle (head to toe: northeast to southwest). He was in
handcuffs with his hands behind his back. His left leg was straight while his right leg was bent at the
knee.

The deceased wore blue jeans, black leather styled boots, a brown belt, and a blue long-sleeved
button up shirt. A black wallet protruded from his back-right pants pocket. There were two knife
sheaths attached to the deceased’s brown belt on his right side; one was black and the other was
brown. The brown sheath had the name “Wilbon” written on it in black ink.
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A brown handled fix bladed knife was on the ground next to the deceased. It was located east of the
deceased’s head. A blue latex glove like those provided by the police department was on the ground
next to the deceased.

Suspected blood was present throughout the deceased’s shirt. Larger suspected blood stains were
visible on the deceased’s right forearm, chest, stomach, left shoulder, inner left thigh, and inner right
thigh. Suspected blood was present on the left and right hands of the deceased. The deceased had
a visible gunshot wound on the top right half of his head. Suspected blood pooled beneath the
deceased’s head.

The deceased had swelling and discoloration above each of his orbital sockets. | wore department
latex gloves and examined the deceased. His buttoned-up shirt was fastened at the bottom but
unbuttoned at the top. | observed a gunshot entry wound to the deceased’s chest. | searched the
deceased’s wallet which contained his Florida Identification Card and his Social Security Card. The
Social Security Card was in plastic and had blue tape attached with the number written on it in black
ink. $5,250 in U.S. currency was determined to be contained in the wallet.

The deceased was positively identified as Wilbon Woodard. The identification was visually
confirmed with Woodard’s identification card and his image in DAVID (taken December 14, 2019).
Woodard’s wallet and contents were collected by Forensic Specialist Sitero at the scene. Forensic
Specialist Sitero processed Woodard’s hands for potential biological evidence. Forensic Specialist
Sitero collected a buccal/DNA standard for Woodard.

After Woodard was examined, his remains were sealed in an evidence bag. Department evidence
tape was placed over the sealed bag. Woodard was transported to the Medical Examiner’s Office
where he would be autopsied.

Daylight Crime Scene Examination and Evidence

Due to the lack of natural light during the initial examination of the crime scene it was maintained
until it could be searched during daylight hours. Investigators D. Covan, K. Isaacs, M. Ray, and
Forensic Technician V. Henderson conducted the daylight search. The exterior of the China Super
Buffet and the adjacent northern business (unnamed and currently under construction) were
searched for projectiles and impact sites.

During the search, four possible projectile (gunshot) impact locations were discovered. Forensic
Technician V. Henderson took images of the possible impact locations. All four locations were
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discovered on the southernmost exterior wall of the business located north of the China Super
Buffet. The wall was made of brick and painted white. Evidence marker 16 was associated to two
possible projectile strikes. Forensic scales were included in the images. Evidence markers 17 and 18
were associated to the additional two possible impact sites. No physical projectiles were recovered.

In addition to the possible projectile strikes, a cellular phone and folding knife were also discovered
during the daylight search. Both the phone and knife were discovered on the northern side of the
China Super Buffet along the drainage area next to the wood-line. Forensic Specialist V. Henderson
took images of the items. Evidence marker 14 was associated to the recovered knife. The knife had
a brown handle and the blade was folded in the outward position. Evidence marker 15 was
associated to the located cellphone.

FARO Measurements

The crime scene was scanned with the department’s 3D imaging FARO system. | was provided with
an interactive program which contained the scanned files. | reviewed the renderings. All images
appeared to be from an infrared view due to the lack of light when the scans were taken. While the
measurements were precise based on the program, due to the infrared imagery, and the precise
method of choosing a given point, the accuracy based on the chosen points to demonstrate
distances are considered estimates.

Using the Measure Distance application for FARO Scan_005, | measured the closest point of
Woodard’s body to the north east corner of the business where he initially contacted 2020-
CA-01011. Based on the measurement, Woodard traveled approximately 16.751 meters or
approximately 57.957 feet as he assaulted 2020-CA-01011 while armed with a knife. There is
difficulty determining Officer initial location when he had initial contact with Woodard as
well as his location after he relocated to better see Woodard. This is because his body worn
camera captured a first-person view. Therefore, it is problematic to determine the distance 2020-
CA-01011 traveled while he was pursued by Woodard who was armed with a knife. In an effort to
make some determination, | measured the distances from Woodard’s initial location (northeast
corner of the business) to the evidence markers associated to Officer recovered cartridge
casings. | used FARO Scan_005 and FARO Scan_006 and the distances are listed below:

- Evidence Marker 7 was 14.454 meters (47.421 feet)

- Evidence Marker 6 was 16.313 meters (53.520 feet)
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- Evidence Marker 5 was 18.871 meters (61.912 feet)
- Evidence Marker 4 was 20.72 meters (67.979 feet)

- Evidence Marker 3 was 21.935 meters (71.965 feet)
- Evidence Marker 2 was 23.53 meters (77.198 feet)

- Evidence Marker 1 was 24.617 meters (80.7664 feet)

| also used the application to measure the distance between Woodard’s western most point
(closest to where he had initial contact with 2020-CA-01011 to Evidence Markers 6 and 7.
Woodard’s body was beyond (east) of recovered fired cartridges casings associated to Evidence
Markers 6 and 7. The measurements demonstrate the distance traveled by Woodard past the
approximate location 2020-CA-01011 stood when he fired the cartridge cases associated to
Evidence Markers 6 and 7. Wooded was 1.077 meters (3.533 feet) beyond Evidence Marker 6.
Wooded was 4.035 meters

(13.238 feet) beyond Evidence Marker 7. This further supports Woodard’s actions as recorded on
Officer body worn camera; Woodard moved towards 2020-CA-01011 and continued to move
towards 2020-CA-01011 after being shot at and while armed with a knife.

| used the FARO application to measure the distance between Woodard’s western most point and
Evidence Marker 2 which was associated to a recovered fired cartridge casing. Evidence Marker 2
was east of Woodard. The measurement creates an approximate distance between Woodard and
the area near 2020-CA-01011 when he discharged the projectile associated to the recovered
cartridge casing. There were 6.781 meters (22.247 feet) between Evidence Marker 2 and Woodard.

Evidence Markers 3 and 4 were farther west of Evidence Marker 2. Because of the visual barriers
placed around Woodard for dignity purposes, | was unable to use the FARO application to make a
single measurement between Evidence Markers 3 and 4. As a next best option to estimate the
distances between Evidence Markers 3 and 4 and Woodard’s western most point, | measured the
distance between Evidence Markers 3 and 4 and the central base of the centermost visual barrier. |
then measured the distance between the central base of the centermost visual barrier and
Woodard’s western most point. | added the sums to estimate the distance between Woodard and
Evidence Markers 3 and 4. The measurements create an approximate distance between Woodard
and the area near 2020-CA-01011 when he discharged the projectiles associated to the recovered
cartridge casings. The distance between Evidence Marker 3 and the center of the centermost visual
barrier was 3.013 meters (9.885 feet). The distance from Woodard and the center of the

centermost
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visual barrier was 2.784 meters (9.133 feet). The estimated distance from Woodard and Evidence
Marker 3 was 5.797 meters (19.019 feet). The distance between Evidence Marker 4 and the center
of the centermost visual barrier was 3.123 meters (10.246 feet). The distance from Woodard and
the center of the centermost visual barrier was 2.784 meters (9.133 feet). The estimated distance
from Woodard and Evidence marker 4 was 5.907 meters (19.379 feet). These measurements
support 2020-CA-01011 continued to step backwards as he discharged his firearm at Woodard while
Woodard continued to approach 2020-CA-01011.

Because Woodard was secured in handcuffs behind his back, | was unable to measure the distance
between the knife and Woodard'’s right hand. The blade was closest to Woodard’s head with the
handle closer to Monroe Street. | used the FARO application to measure the distance between the
tip of the blade and Woodard’s closest point (top of head). The distance was minimal: .371 meters
(1.217 feet). | measured the distance of the knife recovered immediately next to Woodard. The
fixed blade knife measured .257 meters (.843 feet).

Officer 2020CA1011 Round Count Procedure and Issued Equipment

After | arrived at the China Super Buffet to investigate this matter, Sergeant Connell asked if involved
2020-CA-01011 could be transported to the police department (where the round count procedure
would occur). 2020-CA-01011 was assigned a “buddy officer” who remained with him to ensure the
integrity of the evidence as well as chain of custody. | confirmed 2020-CA-01011 could relocate to
the police department in accordance with department policy General Order 60.

Investigator A. Bailey responded to the police department and was responsible for the round count
procedures and collection of evidence from involved 2020-CA-01011. Investigator Bailey
documented her investigative actions in a supplemental report. For continuity purposes an excerpt
of her report was copied below:

2020-CA-01011 was escorted to the Criminal Investigations Bureau conference room.
2020-CA-01011 was accompanied by his attorney, Stephen Webster, and another Officer,
Joshua Armstrong. Also present during the collection of evidence from 2020-CA-01011
were the following personnel:

Amanda Bailey (Violent Crimes Investigator)
Justin French (Training Officer)

Vernon Henderson (Forensic Scientist)
Mark Adrick (Internal Affairs Investigator)
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Ginny Osborn (Criminal Investigations Bureau Sergeant)
Shane Porter (Patrol Major)
Jason Laursen (Deputy Chief)

2020-CA-01011 had his handgun holstered with a magazine seated in the weapon and two
magazines secured in pouches on the left side of his duty belt. Officer French counted the
rounds of ammunition in Officer handgun and magazines. 2020-CA-01011 was
carrying a Glock 22 .40-caliber semi-automatic handgun (serial number PZE650), which
contained one unfired cartridge in the chamber. There was a 15- round capacity magazine
seated in the magazine well of the handgun, which contained eight unfired cartridges. In the
magazine pouch closest to Officer belt buckle was a 15-round capacity magazine
which contained 15 unfired cartridges. In the magazine pouch farthest from Officer

belt buckle was a 15-round capacity magazine which contained 15 unfired cartridges. 2020-
CA-01011 was not in possession of any other firearms or ammunition. It is standard for
Officers to carry each of their three issued handgun magazines loaded to capacity (15) with
one (1) cartridge chambered in their handguns, totaling 46 rounds (15+15+15+1). 2020-
CA-01011 had was carrying 39 cartridges at the time of inspection, indicating 2020-CA-01011
likely fired seven (7) cartridges during the shooting the incident.

The collection of evidence occurred from approximately 3:15a.m. until 3:34a.m. on May 19,
2020. Officer French issued 2020-CA-01011 a temporary replacement handgun upon
conclusion. Forensic Scientist (F.S.) Vernon Henderson took digital photographs of the
handgun, cartridges, and magazines as they were counted. F.S. Henderson impounded the
handgun, cartridges, and magazines as evidence. F.S. Henderson took digital photographs of
2020-CA-01011, who was wearing a standard police uniform. 2020-CA-01011 advised he did
not have any physical contact with Woodard, therefore there was no expectation Woodard’s
DNA would be present on or about 2020-CA-01011. No buccal sample was collected from
2020-CA-01011 because there was no expectation that Officer DNA would be present
on or about Woodard.

Officer body worn camera was obtained and Investigator Bailey initiated an upload of
the video from the incident. However, 2020-CA-01011 was escorted to the Watch
Commander’s Office to have a download conducted for his Taser activity. Sergeant Ginny
Osborn stood by with the body camera until the upload was completed. Sergeant Osborn
verified the video properly uploaded before she returned Officer body worn camera
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to him.

While in the Watch Commander’s Office, Sergeant Chris Papy conducted a download of
Officer Taser activity. The activity indicated Officer Taser was not used during
his encounter with Woodard. 2020-CA-01011, Stephen Webster, Sergeant Papy, and
Investigator Bailey were present during the download of the Taser activity.

Tallahassee Police Department General Order 63 (Officer-Involved Action Resulting in Serious
Injury or Death) mandates “Each involved officer shall initially be placed on administrative
leave for a minimum of 72 hours, followed by an administrative assignment as directed by
the Chief of Police or designee.” In accordance with this policy, Chief Lawrence Revell met
with 2020-CA-01011 and provided him notification he was being placed on administrative
leave. 2020-CA-01011 was driven home by Officer Armstrong.

possibly

Officer Elijah DeGraw’s Interview

Officer DeGraw advised the following:

Investigator Bailey conducted the interview with Officer DeGraw. Investigator Baily summarized the
interview within her supplemental report. For continuity purposes, I’ve copied the below excerpt
from Investigator Bailey’s report:

On May 19, 2020 at approximately 4:00a.m., Officer DeGraw was interviewed in the Criminal
Investigations Bureau Interview Room 1 regarding the shooting incident. The interview was
audio and video recorded. Officer DeGraw was advised of oath and perjury via written
warning, which he indicated verbally and via signature he understood. Officer DeGraw swore
or affirmed the statement he would provide would be wholly true.

Officer DeGraw works the midnight shift (21:15-07:15) in the Northwest District of the City of
Tallahassee. Officer DeGraw was finishing a call for service at a hotel on North Monroe
Street when he observed the call for service at Circle K regarding Haines’ injuries. Officer
DeGraw requested Dispatch send him the call at Circle K and he arrived on scene shortly
thereafter. Another Officer was en route to be Officer DeGraw’s back-up, but 2020-
CA-01011 cancelled the other unit and responded to assist Officer DeGraw. Haines was
bleeding from the areas of his eyes, elbows, and knees, as though he’d been in a fight on the
ground. Haines reported he had only recently met Woodard and thought his first name was
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“Michael.” Haines advised he was drinking and eating pizza with Woodard and several other
transients across the street at the China Super Buffet. Haines recalled Woodard was carrying
two knives and began threatening people with the knives. Haines told Woodard to stop
threatening people with the knives. Woodard pulled out a knife and threatened to cut and
kill Haines with the knife, at which time Haines and Woodard began physically fighting.

Woodard did not use the knife to harm Haines, but Haines recalled Woodard using his hands
to attempt to gouge out Haines’ eyeballs. Haines said he was able to get away and come
across the street to Circle K. Haines advised his cell phone possibly fell out during the fight at
the China Super Buffet. Haines advised Woodard was possibly still at the incident location, as
well. Haines described Woodard as a white male with a short, crew-style haircut wearing a
shirt, long pants, and being in the company of a small, black dog, which was possibly a
chihuahua. While Officer DeGraw was obtaining Haines’ statement, 2020-CA-01011 arrived
at Circle K and witnessed a portion of the interview. Officer DeGraw asked 2020-CA-01011 if
he ( ) could go across the street to the China Super Buffet to check for Haines” phone.
2020-CA-01011 was provided a description of Woodard. 2020-CA-01011 drove across the
street to the China Super Buffet and Leon County Emergency Medical Services assisted
Haines to the ambulance. As Haines was being evaluated, Officer DeGraw observed 2020-
CA-01011 standing near the drive-through awning of the China Super Buffet, illuminating
Woodard near bushes at the northeast corner of the building with his flashlight. Officer
DeGraw told LCEMS personnel he had to go across the street and Officer DeGraw began
running toward the China Super Buffet. While crossing the street, Officer DeGraw heard
2020-CA-01011 yelling,

“Drop the knife! Drop the knife! Drop the knife!” as Woodard advanced toward 2020-
CA-01011, who was running from the area of the drive-through awning toward North
Monroe Street. Officer DeGraw heard approximately 5-7 gunshots fired.

Woodard continued to advance toward 2020-CA-01011, despite being shot, or at least shot
at. Officer DeGraw notified Dispatch that shots had been fired. By the time Officer DeGraw
reached the eastern parking lot of the China Super Buffet, 2020-CA-01011 was holding
Woodard at gunpoint and the black dog was still on scene. Woodard was in a prone position
with his head toward North Monroe Street (east) and his feet toward the China Super Buffet
building (west). Woodard’s left hand was under his torso and his right hand was extended
outward, above his head with a large fixed-blade knife, inches away from his right hand.
There was at least one knife sheath on Woodard’s hip, but there may have been two.
Woodard had an apparent gunshot wound to his forehead. Woodard’s injuries and condition
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were inconsistent with life (motionless and not making any noise). Although Officer DeGraw
believed Woodard was deceased, he requested Dispatch send LCEMS to the scene for
Woodard’s injuries. Officer DeGraw put gloves on his hands and handcuffed Woodard while
2020-CA-01011 continued to provide deadly cover. LCEMS came from across the street and
several Officers arrived on scene to assist, including Sergeant Kathy Connell. Sergeant Connell
informed LCEMS Woodard was decease and requested they not manipulate the scene.
Sergeant Connell assigned Officer Joshua Armstrong to accompany 2020-CA-01011, and she
assigned Officer Gary Senters to accompany Officer DeGraw. Officer DeGraw was not
qguestioned about the incident by anyone prior to the interview.

Officer DeGraw’s body worn camera was uploaded and a verification was conducted to
confirm the video was properly uploaded. Officer DeGraw’s verbal account of the incident
was consistent with the footage captured via his body worn camera. During the interview,
Officer DeGraw’s recounted Haines provided a potential name for Woodard, which was
possibly “Michael.” Officer DeGraw stated he wasn’t confident “Michael” was the name
Haines provided for Woodard. DeGraw’s body camera video captured Haines providing the
name “William” as a possible first name for Wilbon Woodard.

Officer 2020CA1011 Interview

On May 21%, 2020, 2020-CA-01011 came to the Tallahassee Police Department to participate in a
scheduled interview. 2020-CA-01011 was accompanied by his attorney S. Webster. In accordance
with Tallahassee Police Department policy, General Order 63, 2020-CA-01011 was permitted to
review his body worn camera footage of the incidents before his formal interview. 2020-CA-01011
was provided access by Investigator A. Bailey to the footage. A digital log was maintained by the
application which housed the video footage (Axon). It was reviewed before and after 2020-CA-01011
reviewed his videos. It confirmed 2020-CA-01011 only reviewed his videos as permitted by policy.
2020-CA-01011 was provided access to his two videos reference this matter. The first was footage
captured when he arrived at the Circle K. The second was footage which captured his actions at the
China Super Buffet. 2020-CA-01011 was afforded privacy with his attorney to review the footage.
The review occurred in the Criminal Investigations Conference Room. Investigator Bailey and |
remained outside the conference room as the review occurred.

After 2020-CA-01011 completed his review of body worn camera footage, he and his attorney went
to Criminal Investigations Bureau Interview room 1. The interview was recorded with the
department’s
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in-room camera system as well as with a body worn camera for redundancy purposes. | summarized
the details of the interview below. The summary is not a transcription. The video recorded
interview should be referenced as the best evidence of the interview. Because 2020-CA-01011 did
not know the name of the victim (Haines) or the suspect (Woodard) they are referred to as “victim”
and “suspect” in the interview summary.

The interview began at 3:31 PM. Investigator Bailey and | conducted the interview. At the onset |
told 2020-CA-01011 | appreciated his willingness to be interviewed. | reiterated the purpose of the
interview was for this criminal investigation. | differentiated the criminal investigation from the
administrative investigation that would be conducted by the department’s Internal Affairs Unit. |
advised 2020-CA-01011 his Miranda Rights. | read the rights from a department issued form. 2020-
CA-01011 acknowledged his rights and signed the departmental form. 2020-CA-01011 while
represented by legal counsel agreed to provide a statement/be interviewed.

2020-CA-01011 confirmed he responded to the call for service at the Circle K (which was the
precursor to the shooting). 2020-CA-01011 knew Officer DeGraw was dispatched to a call for service
at the Circle K. He learned from his radio the victim was “bloody.” 2020-CA-01011 heard Sergeant
Connell ask Officer DeGraw if he had backup (via radio). Officer Senters, who was next to 2020-
CA-01011, volunteered to respond as a backup officer for Officer DeGraw. 2020-CA-01011 cancelled
Officer Senters and responded instead. 2020-CA-01011 said he responded instead because he was
assigned to the “zone” where the call for service originated (patrol officers are assigned to
geographic locations within the City of Tallahassee. Those locations were referred to as “zones” and
are currently referred to as “Beats”).

2020-CA-01011 said he responded to the Circle K and parked next to one of the gas pumps. He
approached Officer DeGraw who spoke with the victim. 2020-CA-01011 heard the victim tell Officer
McGraw the suspect “had a knife.” He heard the victim was “beat up” and 2020-CA-01011 said he
observed blood on the victim. 2020-CA-01011 did not recall the name of the victim but was able to
describe him. 2020-CA-01011 knew the victim believed the suspect remained in the area of the
China Super Buffet and had a dog. Thereafter, EMS arrived, and the victim explained he needed to
recover his phone. 2020-CA-01011 heard the victim describe the suspect and wrote the description
down. Officer DeGraw requested 2020-CA-01011 to go to the China Super Buffet to search for the
victim’s phone. He explained the victim was reluctant to go to the hospital without his phone.

| asked 2020-CA-01011 if he recalled any injuries to the victim. 2020-CA-01011 said the victim had
“blood all over him” and the victim said the suspect gouged his eyes. Specifically, 2020-CA-01011
recalled
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blood on the victim’s face, hands, and arms. 2020-CA-01011 knew the suspect was armed with
knives.

2020-CA-01011 drove his patrol vehicle to the China Super Buffet. He parked beneath the awning. |
showed 2020-CA-01011 a printed daylight image of the China Super Buffet. 2020-CA-01011
identified the northern entrance as the driveway he pulled into the business. He notated where he
parked. 2020-CA-01011 exited his vehicle and used a flashlight to illuminate the area. 2020-
CA-01011 said he observed belongings. | asked 2020-CA-01011 about the lighting conditions of the
area. He mentioned streetlights being on Monroe Street but was unsure if there was any lighting at
the business.

2020-CA-01011 said he searched for the victim’s cellphone and traveled from the awning
northwards (illustrated on the image). As he walked north 2020-CA-01011 said he observed the
suspect at the northeast corner. 2020-CA-01011 said the suspect attempted to hide behind the
bushes. 2020-CA-01011 used his flashlight to illuminate the suspect. 2020-CA-01011 asked the
suspect “what are you doing behind the bushes.” 2020-CA-01011 told me he had probable cause to
detain the suspect in the previous attack and knew the suspect’s description.

2020-CA-01011 said he heard a dog from the area (northeast corner) which garnered his attention.
The sound of the dog indicated to 2020-CA-01011 the suspect was in the area. 2020-CA-01011
indicated in the printed image where he first observed the suspect. 2020-CA-01011 said he was only
able to see the suspect’s head and left shoulder beyond the bushes. 2020-CA-01011 reiterated he
used his flashlight to illuminate the suspect and told him to come out of the bushes.

2020-CA-01011 walked east across the parking lot, so he had a better view of the partially concealed
suspect. The suspect stood up and faced 2020-CA-01011 said the suspect “just stared” at him. At
this point 2020-CA-01011 was able to see the entire suspect except for the suspect’s right hand
which remained concealed in the bushes. 2020-CA-01011 specifically told the suspect to take his
hand out of the bushes. The command was repeated, and 2020-CA-01011 said he gave the
commands for his safety. 2020-CA-01011 explained he did not recall knowing the suspect to be
armed with a knife when he made contact with the suspect, but his memory was refreshed of this
fact when he watched his body worn camera footage. 2020-CA-01011 said he was concerned in
general for his safety because the suspect refused to make his hand visible.

Because of the suspect’s actions, 2020-CA-01011 removed one of the safety features on his duty
holster and placed his hand onto his department issued handgun. When this happened 2020-
CA-01011 described the suspect as taking a momentary step/lunge towards him. After this occurred
the suspect remained in the same area and his hand remained concealed in the same bush
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2020-CA-01011 said he could not recall at what precise point he retrieved his duty pistol from his
holster. The suspect moved his hand from behind the bush and “started coming at me.” | asked
2020-CA-01011 if he observed anything in the suspect’s hand. 2020-CA-01011 said the suspect had
a knife in his hand. At this point the suspect’s arms were by his side (demonstrated by 2020-
CA-01011). When this occurred 2020-CA-01011 estimated there was less then fifteen feet between
himself and the suspect.

2020-CA-01011 said he repeatedly ordered the suspect to “drop the knife.” The suspect “came at
me” and 2020-CA-01011 said he “pulled the trigger twice.” Despite shooting twice at the suspect,
he continued to “come at me.” 2020-CA-01011 described having to step backwards
(“backpedaling”). Specifically, 2020-CA-01011 said he walked backwards toward Monroe Street
(west). 2020-CA-01011 told me he was “in fear he (suspect) was gonna hurt me.” 2020-CA-01011
recalled the injuries he observed on the initial victim as a factor in being afraid of injury from the
suspect.

2020-CA-01011 clarified his course of fire:
2020-CA-01011 said he fired twice at the armed suspect, described a pause where he

ordered the suspect to “drop the knife” and radioed “shots fired”. 2020-CA-01011 fired a
second string of fire (2 shots), looked behind him to make sure he did not walk onto
Monroe Street, knew the suspect “was still coming at me” and said “I’'m gonna kill you.”
2020-CA-01011 then fired twice more, paused, and made an additional shot.

After 2020-CA-01011 described his third string of fire, he said the suspect fell to the ground. 2020-
CA-01011 said he immediately recognized the knife on the ground next to the suspect’s hands. At
some point during the shooting, 2020-CA-01011 said he made a second radio transmission that
“shots” were fired. He heard Officer DeGraw call his ID number ( ) on the radio but did not recall
the transmission. After the suspect fell, Officer DeGraw arrived and placed the suspect into
handcuffs. 2020-CA-01011 said Officer DeGraw paused to put on a pair of gloves before handcuffing
the suspect. 2020-CA-01011 described how he and Officer DeGraw positioned themselves on the
same side of the suspect as to not create a “crossfire” situation. This statement insinuated 2020-
CA-01011 continued to use his department handgun to maintain deadly cover on the suspect. 2020-
CA-01011 said the suspect maintained possession of the knife in his right hand “the entire

time” (during Officer three separate strings of fire) until the suspect fell to the ground (after
the final string of fire). After the suspect fell, 2020-CA-01011 said he observed the knife on the
ground near the suspect’s right hand.

2020-CA-01011 said he did not observe any movement from the suspect after he fell to the ground
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(after the final string of fire). Officer DeGraw secured the suspect into handcuffs. After the suspect
was secured in handcuffs, 2020-CA-01011 holstered his handgun. He then heard sirens and
Sergeant Connell (patrol supervisor) arrived. Sergeant Connell asked 2020-CA-01011 what
responding officers needed to search for. 2020-CA-01011 relayed the entire incident was in the
immediate area.

| asked 2020-CA-01011 questions to clarify information in his account. 2020-CA-01011 told me
when he initially observed the suspect, he knew the suspect matched the description provided by
the initial victim who was attacked. 2020-CA-01011 estimated from the time the suspect moved
towards him with the knife to the time the he fired his last shot was ten seconds. 2020-CA-01011
said he did not believe he allowed the suspect to get closer than ten feet of him. After Sergeant
Connell arrived, 2020-CA-01011 said Officer Armstrong was assigned as his “buddy officer.” 2020-
CA-01011 said he remained with Officer Armstrong until his legal counsel arrived. Thereafter, he
relocated to the police station.

After 2020-CA-01011 completed his chronological account of the incident, he was asked additional
clarifying questions and questions about his perceptions about the events he previously described.
2020-CA-01011 said he believed the China Super Buffet to be closed and without patrons at the
time he went to search for the victim’s phone. 2020-CA-01011 said it would be unusual for anyone
to be at the closed business at the time he responded. When 2020-CA-01011 first observed the
suspect, he said the suspect was “concealed behind the bushes.” 2020-CA-01011 explained the
area where the suspect concealed himself was not a “normal walkway” and it would be usual for
any person to be in that area.

2020-CA-01011 said when he initially observed the suspect, he was only able to see the suspect’s
forehead and left shoulder. This led 2020-CA-01011 to believe the suspect knelt or crouched
behind the bushes. When more of the suspect became visible, 2020-CA-01011 believed the suspect
stood up. 2020-CA-01011 believed the suspect stood up as a response to Officer attempt to
make verbal contact. After the suspect stood and became more visible, 2020-CA-01011 confirmed
the suspect continued to conceal his right hand. 2020-CA-01011 was asked based on his training
what concerns he had based on the suspect’s efforts to keep his right hand concealed. 2020-
CA-01011 believed the suspect concealed “a gun, a knife, a wrench, or anything that could be used
to hurt me.”

2020-CA-01011 contrasted the actions of the suspect with other suspects he’s had contact with, in
the course of serving as a law enforcing officer. 2020-CA-01011 demonstrated how when suspects
are ordered to “show me your hands” they comply. It was reiterated by 2020-CA-01011 the

suspect’s refusal to comply with his command caused him to think “what are you hiding.” 2020-
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explained based on the suspect’s initial actions (concealing his right hand) he was concerned enough
to remove one of his duty holster’s safety features and grasp his handgun.

2020-CA-01011 said the suspect “had this stare about him.” 2020-CA-01011 said he’d “never seen it
before.” 2020-CA-01011 interpreted the suspect’s stare to mean “someone’s gonna leave here. It's
gonna be either me or you.” Based on the stare, 2020-CA-01011 felt as if the suspect would hurt
him and mentally prepared to defend himself. 2020-CA-01011 reiterated, “everything happened so
fast.”

2020-CA-01011 was asked if when the suspect emerged from behind the bush if it appeared like he
was going to surrender. 2020-CA-01011 said the suspect did not act like he was going to surrender
and instead “came at me” while armed with the knife. 2020-CA-01011 was asked if he did not back
away from the suspect what he believed would have occurred. He explained he believed the
suspect would have stabbed him. 2020-CA-01011 was asked if he did not shoot the suspect what he
believed would have happened to him. 2020-CA-01011 responded, “I would have been in the
hospital.”

2020-CA-01011 was asked if he’s witnessed victims who have been injured with a knife. He
responded affirmatively. 2020-CA-01011 knew knife inflicted injuries could cause serious injury or
death. 2020-CA-01011 was asked if he recalled what the knife looked like. He said he thought it
had a black handle and described it as a “hunting style knife” with a fix blade. 2020-CA-01011

demonstrated with his hands the size of the knife.
“he (suspect) had hit the ground and stopped moving. The threat had ended.”
2020-CA-01011 was asked why he stopped shooting. He responded:

After the suspect fell, he said he did not recall the suspect breathing. 2020-CA-01011 recalled how
he observed a gunshot wound to the suspect’s head. 2020-CA-01011 was asked about his training
and being knowledgeable in any medical aid for a gunshot wound to the head. 2020-CA-01011 said
he was unaware of any aid he could have provided to the gunshot wound to the suspect’s head.
2020-CA-01011 recalled EMS responded to the location from across the street. 2020-CA-01011 said
EMS did not provide aid to the suspect and realized he was beyond medical aid.

At the conclusion of the interview, 2020-CA-01011 signed the printed image he used in the interview
to refer to and notate locations. This image was retained as evidence. | explained to 2020-
CA-01011 the grand jury process. | provided 2020-CA-01011 with an opportunity to provide me
with any other information he wanted included in his formal interview. 2020-CA-01011 reiterated
the suspect “made the choice” and “he made it for me.” 2020-CA-01011 added before he watched
the body worn camera
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footage his heart rate was in the 70’s and when he reviewed the footage it rose to the 120’s. 2020-
CA-01011 and his counsel were invited to contact us if they recalled any information in the future
then wanted to add.

Suspect Wilbon Woodard’s Autopsy

Woodard’s autopsy was performed on May 19t, 2020 at approximately 10:45 AM. The autopsy
occurred at the Office of the District Two Medical Examiner’s Office. This was the location where
Woodard’s remains were transferred to after he was removed from the parking lot of the China
Super Buffet. The autopsy was performed by Doctor Flannagan. Before the autopsy was performed,
a photograph of the evidence bag which contained Woodard’s remains was photographed
(20M291001). The evidence seal remained intact. This demonstrated the integrity of Woodard'’s
remains as evidence in this investigation.

Forensic Technician J. Sitero and | attended the autopsy. The Medical Examiner’s case number for
Woodard was: 20M-291. | removed the handcuffs placed on Woodard during the autopsy
procedure. Woodard was found to have a $50 bill inside his boot (20M291026). Woodard was
found to have a Harley Davidson wallet concealed inside the front of his waistband (20M291027).
The wallet was determined to contain $10,930 in US currency. Woodard was found to have and
additional $432.24 in US currency within his clothing.

Doctor Flannagan determined Woodard was struck by projectiles (gunshots) at the below described
locations:

Entrance wound on the lower portion of his upper chest (20M291068)

o Projectile/bullet was observed in X-Ray in lower right of back and removed
(20M291160, 20M291161, and 20M291088)

- Entrance wound on front of upper left bicep (20M291069)

o Projectile/bullet was observed in X-Ray in left triceps and removed (20M291174,
20M291175, 20M291176, and 20M291177)

- Two Entrance wounds which continued and passed through front of upper right forearm
(20M291091, 20M291120, and 20M291090)

- Entrance wound on top of left of neck (20M291096)
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o Projectile/bullet was observed in X-Ray in lower left back of head and removed
(20M291164, 20M291165, and 20M291085)

In addition to the gunshot injuries, Woodard was observed to have suspected blood on and round
his left fingertips/fingernails (20M291102). Woodward was observed to have suspected blood on
and around his right thumb/thumbnail (20M291125). This was consistent with Haines’ account of
Woodard using his thumbs to gouge his eyes.

At the conclusion of the autopsy, all evidence and property were transferred from Doctor Flannagan
to Forensic Technician J. Sitero. Due to the amount of funds discovered on Woodard, Lieutenant J.
Baldwin responded to the Medical Examiner’s Officer in accordance with department policy to verify
the amount of money discovered on Woodard. Lieutenant J. Baldwin signed a department property
receipt verifying the amount of recovered funds.

On June 26, 2020, | received the autopsy report for Woodard. The report was authored by Doctor

Flannagan. The Medical Examiner’s case number was 20M-291. | copied the Final Pathologic
Diagnoses below:

It Penetrating gunshot wound of lower chest/abdomen.

A. Extensive tears of the left lobe of the liver.
B. Hemoperitoneum (150 ml).
C. Projectile recovered from right lower back.

1. Penetrating gunshot wound of head.

A. Entry wound of right top of head.

B. Injuries of right and left cerebral hemispheres and left lobe of cerebellum.
C. Fractures of the calvarium and basilar skull.

D. Projectile recovered from soft tissues oflateral left upper neck.

1. Penetrating gunshot wound of left upper arm.

A Soft tissue injuries of upper arm.
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B. Projectile recovered from skeletal muscle of upper arm.
V. Perforating gunshot wound of proximal right forearm.
A. Soft tissue injuries of right forearm.
B. No projectile fragments recovered.
V. Graze gunshot wound of anteromedial right forearm.
VL. Minor contusions and abrasion of the forehead, left hip and left arm.
VII. Postmortem blood positive for ethanol (0.122 g/dL).

The case of death was listed as: “Multiple gunshot wounds.” The Manner of death was listed as
“Homicide (shot be police officer during confrontation).”

Next of Kin Notification and Suspect Background Information from Family

On May 19, 2020, Victim Advocate S. Latorre and | traveled to 711 Little John Road to contact Laura
Woodard. Laura Woodard was determined to be the closet local relative (next of kin) to Wilbon
Woodard. VA. Latorre and | spoke with Laura Woodard on the front porch of her residence. The
conversation was not recorded at it was a next of kin notification.

Laura Woodard explained to us she was Wilbon Woodard’s sister-in-law. Laura Woodard was
married to Wilbon Woodard’s late brother (deceased). Laura Woodard told us Wilbon Woodard was
at her residence on May 18, 2020. Laura Woodard provided us with background information about
Wilbon Woodard. We learned Wilbon Woodard’s wife passed and he received a sum of money as a
result. Wilbon Woodard was known to conceal a large sum of cash on his person.

Laura Woodard told us Wilbon Woodard was evicted from his residence and stayed with his son
Shane Woodard. Laura Woodard said Wilbon Woodard’s mental state became increasingly
impaired. Laura Woodard said during the previous week while he resided with his son, Wilbon
Woodard used a hatchet and tried to fight ghosts. This was the reason Wilbon Woodard was no
longer permitted to reside with his son. Wilbon Woodard asked Laura Woodard if he could reside
with her and she declined. Wilbon Woodard’s son rented him a hotel room at the Motel 6 located
on North Monroe Street (2738 North Monroe Street). We informed Laura Woodard of Wilbon
Woodard’s death. VA Latorre provided Laura Woodard with support services. Laura Woodard
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inquired about Wilbon Woodard’s money so it could be used to offset funeral costs.

On May 20th, 2020, VA Latorre spoke with Laura Woodard. She informed Shane Woodard of Wilbon
Woodard’s death. Laura Woodard reiterated some of the information she shared with VA Latorre on
May 19t, 2020 when we notified her of Wilbon Woodard’s death. In addition, Laura Woodard
detailed examples of Wilbon Woodard’s declining mental health. This included Wilbon Woodard
talking with his deceased brother and overall confusion. Wilbon Woodard told Laura Woodard he
refused medical treatment for existing conditions and wanted to die.

On May 28t, 2020 | sent a release for the sum of money discovered on Wilbon Woodard’s person.
The sum was $16,612.24. It was released to Wilbon Woodard’s daughter Angela Page. Before |
authorized the release, | received approval from the department’s legal advisor  Flury.

It should be noted the Motel 6 at which Wilbon Woodard stayed was approximately .5 miles from
the China Super Buffet (2698 North Monroe Street).

Requests for Evidence to be Processed and Examined

On June 1%, 2020, | completed two requests to have evidence recovered during this investigation
examined by the Florida Department of Law Enforcement lab. The first request encompassed
biological evidence while the second request encompassed ballistic evidence. The requests were
made in accordance with the Florida Department of Law Enforcement’s Evidence submission
guidelines.

| requested to have the below evidence submitted for biological examination:
- Item 22: Knife with suspected blood recovered next to Woodard
- Item 18: Swab of Woodard’s left hand
- Item 17: Swab of Woodard’s right hand
- Item 14: Woodard’s buccal (DNA standard)
- Item 13: Leaf with suspect blood
| requested to have the below evidence submitted for ballistic examination:

- Item 38: Projectile from Woodard'’s left arm
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- Item 37: Projectile from Woodard'’s right arm

- Item 36: Projectile from Woodard'’s right neck

- Items 4,6,7,8,10, and 11: Recovered .40 caliber SW cartridge casings
- Item 2: Glock .40 caliber handgun/ SN: PZE650

On June 30, 2020, | received a Laboratory Report authored by the Florida Department of Law
Enforcement. The associated FDLE Number was 20200101224. The report was authored by Crime
Laboratory Analyst Maria Hiott. | reviewed the report. The report included forensic determinations
for the biological evidence submitted in this investigation.

The leaf with suspected blood (Item 13) was confirmed to be blood. The blood was determined not
to belong to Woodard. It is the investigative belief the blood belonged to victim Haines and
evidence of the precipitating Aggravative Battery which necessitated the call for service prior to the
officer involved shooting. The swabs of Woodard’s hands contained a DNA mixture which included
Woodard (expected donor). According to the report, “due to the limited nature of these results, this
data is not interpretable.” In reference to the knife discovered adjacent to Woodard’s remains, the
examiner tested the knife to “determine the handler of this item.” The resulting DNA profile
discovered on the knife matched Woodard:

“The observed DNA profiles are greater than 700 billion times more likely to occur if them
samples originated from Wilbon Woodard than from an unrelated individual.”

To summarize, the Florida Department of Law Enforcement’s Biology section was able to confirm the
Woodard’s DNA was discovered on the knife recovered adjacent to his remains. This furthered
Woodard was armed with the recovered knife when he attacked 2020-CA-01011.

Applicable Law

Florida State Statute 776.012 governs Justifiable Use of Force. Officer actions are governed
by this statute. The statute is copied below:

(1) A person is justified in using or threatening to use force, except deadly force, against
another when and to the extent that the person reasonably believes that such conduct is
necessary to defend himself or herself or another against the other’s imminent use of
unlawful force. A person who uses or threatens to use force in accordance with this
subsection does not have a duty to retreat before using or threatening to use such force.
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(2) A person is justified in using or threatening to use deadly force if he or she reasonably
believes that using or threatening to use such force is necessary to prevent imminent death
or great bodily harm to himself or herself or another or to prevent the imminent commission
of a forcible felony. A person who uses or threatens to use deadly force in accordance with
this subsection does not have a duty to retreat and has the right to stand his or her ground if
the person using or threatening to use the deadly force is not engaged in a criminal activity
and is in a place where he or she has a right to be.

Officer Training, Experience, and Qualification Records 2020-CA-1011

Investigative Summary and Findings

On May 19%, 2020 at 1:29 AM Tallahassee Police Officer E. DeGraw responded to a call for service at
the Circle K located at 2683 North Monroe Street. Because of the violent nature of the call, patrol
supervisor Sergeant Connell inquired if Officer DeGraw required a backup officer. At 1:32 AM,
Officer radioed he would respond to the call for service to back up Officer DeGraw. 2020-
CA-01011 arrived at the Circle K at 1:33 AM.

2020-CA-01011 visually observed victim Haines who provided a verbal account of the
incident to Officer DeGraw. 2020-CA-01011 witnessed visible injuries to victim Haines.
2020-CA-01011 would describe victim Haines as having “blood all over him” during his

interview. Body worn camera
footage captured victim Haines’ injuries as observed by 2020-CA-01011; it corroborated Officer

description. Security video at the Circle K also recorded victim Haines contact with Officers. 2020-
CA-01011 heard victim Haines describe the attack. 2020-CA-01011 was present when the Haines
told Officer DeGraw the outstanding suspect was armed with a knife. Moreover, 2020-CA-01011
was present when the victim told Officer DeGraw the suspect threatened him with the knife and
said, “I'll cut you, I'll Kill you.”
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Haines provided a description of the suspect which was heard by 2020-CA-01011 who wrote it
down. Haines said he required his cellular phone before he would go to the hospital with Leon
County Emergency Medical Services for treatment for his injuries. Haines told officers his phone
was at the Super China Buffet. Haines said this is where he was attacked by the suspect as well as
the suspect’s last known location. Officer DeGraw asked 2020-CA-01011 if he would attempt to
locate Haines cellphone. 2020-CA-01011 agreed, and departed the Circle K.

2020-CA-01011 drove to the Super China Buffet and parked his marked police vehicle beneath the
awning which covered the main entrance to the business. The business was closed. Based on body
worn camera footage there was no exterior lighting outside the business. Because of the time,
there was minimal natural light. 2020-CA-01011 exited his vehicle and due to the limited lighting
used a flashlight to illuminate the area. 2020-CA-01011 began to search the area for victim Haines’
cellular phone.

Approximately 30 seconds after he exited his vehicle 2020-CA-01011 heard a dog bark. 2020-
CA-01011 said in his interview the sound of the dog bark alerted him as he knew the suspect had a
dog. At this point 2020-CA-01011 activated his body worn camera and the audio was activated.
2020-CA-01011 said his attention was drawn to the shrubs located at the northeast side of the
business. 2020-CA-01011 said he observed a male partially concealed by the bushes. 2020-
CA-01011 used his flashlight to illuminate the male. The male said “what” to 2020-CA-01011 asked
the suspect why he was hiding and “starring at me.”

During Officer interview he said the concealed male matched the description of the suspect
who injured the victim. 2020-CA-01011 repositioned himself at an angle and used his flashlight, so
he was better able to observe the suspect. The suspect no longer crouched but stood. 2020-
CA-01011 said the suspect was visible except for his right hand. 2020-CA-01011 said the suspect
purposefully kept his right hand concealed in the bushes. During his interview 2020-CA-01011 said
the suspect’s efforts to conceal his right hand caused him concern and he believed the suspect
concealed a weapon.

2020-CA-01011 repeatedly ordered the suspect to come out from behind the bushes. 2020-
CA-01011 told the suspect to “get your hand out of the bush.” The suspect then charged at 2020-
CA-01011 while armed with the knife.

2020-CA-01011 told investigators he observed a knife in the suspect’s hand as he moved towards
him. 2020-CA-01011 stepped rearwards and ordered the suspect twice to drop the knife. 2020-
CA-01011 said

REPORTNG OFFICER
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REVIEWED BY DATE

Butler, William A 06/30/2020

43047

TPD Case Supp 2020-00078840 Page 43 OF 47



TALLAHASSEE POLICE DEPARTMENT
FIELD CASE REPORT
CASE#
2020-00078840

(continuation)

if he did not shoot the suspect he would have been injured or killed. 2020-CA-01011 fired two
rounds from his department issued handgun at the suspect. 2020-CA-01011 provided the suspect
with additional commands to drop the knife after he fired his first two shots. The suspect refused
and continued towards 2020-CA-01011 while armed with the knife. 2020-CA-01011 fired twice
more. The suspect continued and told 2020-CA-01011 he would “kill ya.” Based on the body worn
camera footage, it appeared the suspect became closer to 2020-CA-01011 despite Officer

efforts to step backwards and previous courses of fire. 2020-CA-01011 fired three more rounds
which stopped the suspect’s attack. The suspect fell to the ground.

Based on the body worn camera footage, 2020-CA-01011 fired all seven rounds in 6 seconds.
During Officer course of fire, he radioed “shots fired.” Officer DeGraw who was at the Circle
K responded to assist 2020-CA-01011. The knife the suspect was armed with was captured in body
worn camera footage on the ground next to the suspect’s right arm. The footage was continuous,
and the knife was not disturbed. 2020-CA-01011 used his handgun to cover the suspect and Officer
DeGraw secured him into handcuffs.

2020-CA-01011 said he observed a gunshot wound to the suspect’s head. 2020-CA-01011 said the
suspect did not display any signs of life. Paramedic J. Perez responded and observed the suspect to
be deceased. Paramedic Perez said during his interview he observed the knife next to the deceased
suspect. Based on the initial investigation, it was determined the suspect who assaulted 2020-
CA-01011 was the same suspect who attacked victim Haines. The suspect was determined to be
Woodard. It would be learned from Woodard’s family his mental health was diminished.
Woodard’s family said in the days prior to his death he spoke to deceased family members and even
used an edged weapon to attack “ghosts”. Woodard’s family was concerned based on his actions
they rented him a hotel room (near the China Super Buffet) in lieu of allowing him to reside with
them.

This investigation yielded the below determinations for May 19th, 2020:

- 2020-CA-01011 was employed by the Tallahassee Police Department as a sworn law
enforcement officer pursuant to FSS: 943.10(1)

- 2020-CA-01011 worked his scheduled shift as a uniformed patrol officer operating a
marked police vehicle (Police insignia and emergency lights)

- 2020-CA-01011 was qualified with his department issued handgun (Glock 22 .40 caliber
2020-CA-1011

handgun
REPORTHNG OFFICER DATE FELD TRAIMNG OFFICER DATE REVEWED BY DATE
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- At 1:29 AM Officer DeGraw was dispatched to a call for service at the Circle K located at 2683
in reference to an Aggravated Battery

o Video evidence was recovered from the Circle K to corroborate events
- At 1:33 AM 2020-CA-01011 responded to the Circle K to serve as back-up to Officer DeGraw

- Between 1:33 AM and 1:37:28 AM 2020-CA-01011 learned the following (Body Worn Camera
activated):

o The victim had, “blood all over him.”

o The suspect injured the victim

o The suspect was armed with a knife and used it to threaten the victim
o Description of the suspect to include being accompanied by a dog

o The suspect was last known to be at the China Super Buffet

o The victim’s cellphone was at the China Super Buffet

o The victim required his phone before he would be transferred to the hospital for
medical aid

- Between 1:38 AM and 1:41:49 AM 2020-CA-01011 did the following at the China Super
Buffet (Body Worn Camera activated):

o Exited his vehicle and searched the area for the victim’s cellular phone
o Due to low light used his flashlight to illuminate the area

o Had his attention drawn to the bushes at the northeast corner of the business after
he heard a dog bark (consistent with suspect’s description)

o Witnessed a male conceal himself behind bushes at the northeast corner of the
business

o Made verbal contact with the male

o Recognized the male matched the description of the suspect

REPORTNG OFFICER DATE FELD TRAIMMNG OFFICER DATE REVIEWED BY DATE
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o Relocated and was better able to observe the suspect

o Became fearful the suspect was armed with a weapon because the suspect
maintained concealment for his right hand

o Became increasingly fearful after the suspect refused to show his right hand

o Was assaulted by the suspect who was armed with a knife

o Ordered the armed suspect repeatedly to “drop the knife.”

o Was afraid if he did not shoot the suspect he would be injured or killed

o Used his department issued handgun to shoot twice at the suspect

o Gave the suspect the command to drop the knife

o Used his department issued handgun to fire twice more at the armed suspect

o The armed suspect continued towards 2020-CA-01011 and told him “I'll kill yea”

0 2020-CA-01011 used his department issued handgun to fire three more times at the
suspect

o The suspect fell to the ground
o Officer DeGraw arrived and placed the suspect into handcuffs

o The knife the suspect was armed with was on the ground next to the suspect’s right
arm

o The Florida Department of Law Enforcement confirmed the suspect’s DNA was
discovered on the recovered knife which indicated he was the handler of the item

o EMS responded and it was determined the suspect was deceased/beyond medical
treatment with a gunshot wound to his head

Based on the investigation, probable cause was established to support the suspect who
assaulted 2020-CA-01011 with a knife was the same suspect who committed an Aggravated
Assault with a Deadly Weapon and Aggravated Battery. Background information was provided
to support the suspect suffered a deteriorated mental state and used an edge weapon to attack
“ghosts.” This
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investigation established probable cause to support Wilbon Woodard was the suspect who
committed an Aggravated Assault with a Deadly Weapon against 2020-CA-01011 as captured on
body worn camera footage. 2020-CA-01011 was the victim of the offense.

Officer actions on May 19, 2020 are governed by Florida Statute 776.012. Pursuant to
Florida Statute 776.012 (previously cited within this report) 2020-CA-01011 would be justified in
using deadly force if the force he used was “necessary to prevent imminent death or great bodily
harm to himself.” Based on this investigation, 2020-CA-01011 was assaulted by a suspect armed
with a straight edged knife in low light conditions. 2020-CA-01011 told investigators if he did not
shoot the armed suspect, he believed he could be killed. Evidence collected in this investigation
affirms the suspect was armed with a knife and the suspect assaulted 2020-CA-01011 with the knife
while making the claim, “I'll kill yeah.” Based on this investigation, the standards set forth in Florida
Statute 776.012 are satisfied and Officer use of force is justified under Florida law.

The findings of this investigation will be reviewed the State Attorney’s Office for the Second Judicial
Circuit of Florida. Those results will be documented in a subsequent report.
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FORENSIC SPECIALIST | - JACOB SITERO 813

FORENSIC UNIT - SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT

CASE #: 2020-78840

DECEASED: Wilbon Woodward

# OF ITEMS/AREAS PROCESSED: 45

INCIDENT: Officer Involved Shooting

LATENTS DEVELOPED: No

DATE: 5/19/20

LOCATION: 2698 N. Monroe St (China Super Buffet)

D: 2:15 A:2:45 C:8:00

On Tuesday, May 19th, 2020 | responded to the above-mentioned location in reference to an officer involved
shooting. The location was the parking lot of the business off of North Monroe St. | was met on scene by Inv.
Dan Warren (352) and informed of the following: Off. 2020CA1011 () was searching the area of the
China Super Buffet because of an assault that had occurred there earlier that day. The suspect (Wilbon
Woodward) approached Off. with a knife. After not complying to officer comands, Off. discharged his
firearm and struck the suspect. The suspect was pronounced deceased on scene.

Overall, mid-range, and close-up photographs were taken prior to processing and evidence collection.

The scene was then mapped out by the use of the FARO 3D laser scanning unit. The unit was set up to scan

the parking lot and the drive-up entrance area of the China Super Buffet. A total of (5) scans were completed.

REPORTNG OFFICER DATE FELD TRAIMMNG OFFICER DATE REVIEWED BY DATE
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The data was uploaded and registered at the TPD Forensic Science Unit via FARO Scene computer program.
At the entrance to the business off of the southbound lanes of North Monroe St, (4) cartridge casings were
located on the pavement. Evidence Marker’s #1-#4 were placed at each cartridge casing. To the southeast,
another cartridge casing was located. Evidence marker #5 was placed at this cartridge casing. To the
northwest of Evidence Marker #5 another cartridge casing was located adjacent to the decedent. Evidence
Marker #6 was placed at this cartridge casing. To the south of Evidence Marker #6, another cartridge casing
was located on the pavement. Evidence Marker #7 was placed at this cartridge casing. To the southeast of
Evidence Marker #7, was the entrance and drive-up overhang area of the Super China Buffet. There were
blankets, beer cans, and a pizza box on the ground around the front door to the business. On a brick pillar
ledge, a knife was located. Adjacent to the brick pillar, was a leaf with suspected blood on it. Evidence Marker
#8 was placed here.

On the north side of the business, a plastic phone cover was located with the number “274-3110” written on
a piece of blue tape stuck to the outside of it. To the north of the cover, in the grass was a suitcase. The
suitcase had clothing and various items located inside of it. As requested by Inv. Warren, the suitcase was
collected.

The decedent was laying facing in a downward position predominately on his left side. The head of the
decedent was facing to the northwest and his feet to the southeast. There was suspected blood present on
the decedent’s clothing and arms. A large pool of suspected blood was present on the decedent’s head on

the pavement around his head. Adjacent to the decedent’s head was a large knife. On the right side of the

REPORTNG OFFICER DATE FELD TRAIMMNG OFFICER DATE REVIEWED BY DATE
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decedent’s body, attached to his belt were (2) empty knife holsters. Sticking out of the decedent’s back right
pocket was a black wallet. The wallet and its contents were photographed and collected as instructed by Inv.
Warren. Due to imminent rain in the area, a buccal swab, a swab of the right hand, and a swab of the left
hand were collected on scene from the decedent to preserve touch DNA evidence.

At approximately 5:30 ALG Funeral transport arrived. The body bag was sealed with a tag and evidence tape.

The body tag and seal were photographed.

At 10:30 | arrived at the Leon County Medical Examiner’s Office for the autopsy. The autopsy was performed
by Dr. Flanagan. Inv. Warren was also present for the autopsy. Due to Covid-19 protocols myself and Inv.
Warren could not enter the examination room or take any photographs. Please refer to Dr. Flanagan’s report

(ME Case #-2020M291) for more information. The following items were collected as requested by Inv.

Warren:

Item 27: Black wallet

Item 28: $10,930.00 from Item 27

Item 29: (1) $5.00 bill

Item 30: $432.24 found on victim’s body at the autopsy
Item 31: Handcuffs

Item 32: Receipt

Item 33: (2) lighters. Belt clip, and a ring

Item 34: ME receipt
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Item 35: Major case prints

Item 36: Suspected projectile from the suspect’s left neck area

Item 37: Suspected projectile from the suspect’s right lower back

Item 38: Suspected projectile from the suspect’s left upper arm

Item 41: Suspect’s shirt

Item 42: Suspect’s pants with (2) knife holsters

Item 43: (2) boots and (2) socks from the suspect

*Due to the amount of cash collected, Lt. Joanna Baldwin (133) came to the autopsy to verify and sign for the
cash along with Inv. Warren.

*After arrival at the TPD Forensic Science Unit, it was discovered that during transport, due to the adverse
weather conditions, the envelope which held the cartridge casing collected at Evidence Marker #4 had gotten
wet and caused the cartridge casing to rip through the packaging. A canvas of the entire lab, crime scene van,
and the crime scene in the daylight hours was conducted but the cartridge casing was unable to be found.
Please refer to the crime scene photographs for the cartridge casing in its original location before the
collection process.

*For a full list of the items collected in this case, please refer to the Property Receipts.

All evidence collected in this case was impounded with the Property and Evidence Section. There were no

further actions taken by this specialist.
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Incident No.:

Case No.:

Incident Type:

Area / Sector / Beat:

Location:

Location Name:
Location Description:
Location City:

Created By:

First Unit Dispatached Time:
First Unit Arrived Time:
Intial Priority: 3

Responding Unit(s)

Call
ID Sign Ag
P14105 P509 PD

Unit Disposition(s):

2020-CA-1011
P15881 P712 PD

Unit Disposition(s):
P14974 P331 PD
Unit Disposition(s):

P15375 P690 PD

07/25/2020 @ 08:18:27

TPD Incident Detail

PD2020051900078840 Incident Date:

106J0 - ASSAULT OR SEXUAL
ASSAULT

Call Source:
NW/19/19
2698 N MONROE ST
CHINA SUPER BUFFET
553-9292
TALLAHASSEE
C10012 - Natalie Whorton
05/19/2020 1:40:00 AM
05/19/2020 1:40:00 AM

Caller Name:
Caller Phone:
Caller Address:
Edited By:

Current Priority:

Name Pri Dispatched Enroute

ELIJAH DEGRAW N 05/19/2020 01:40:00

B - NO REPORT WRITTEN, 202N - BACK UP

CRAIG TAYLOR Y 05/19/2020 01:40:18 05/19/2020 01:40:43
150N - WEAPONS VIOLATION NO OTHERS APPLY, D - REPORT WRITTEN

JONATHAN SCOTT N 05/19/2020 01:40:18
202N - BACK UP, J - SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT WRITTEN
ZACKARY HOOVER N

05/19/2020 01:40:31 05/19/2020 01:40:31

CAD Search - IncidentDetail

Incident / Route Status:

First Unit Enroute Time:
Route Closed Time:

05/19/2020 1:40:00 AM (Tuesday)

Field Initiated

Call Recieved Date/Time:

Inactive incident / Closed

C10430 - ttypel

05/19/2020 1:40:00 AM

05/21/2020 6:24:31 AM

2

On Scene

05/19/2020 01:40:00

05/19/2020 01:43:17

05/19/2020 01:43:04

Time on
Cleared Incident
05/19/2020 06:13:43 04:33:43
05/19/2020 07:55:43 06:12:25
05/19/2020 06:47:23 05:04:19
05/19/2020 01:43:56
Page: 1 of 6



Call
D Sign Ag

Unit Disposition(s):

P93175 P210 PD

Unit Disposition(s):

P15309 P761 PD

Unit Disposition(s):

P13871 P613 PD

Unit Disposition(s):

P16388 p227 PD

Unit Disposition(s):

P15429 P691 PD

Unit Disposition(s):

P14976 P336 PD

Unit Disposition(s):

P16553 P756 PD

Unit Disposition(s):

P93867 P253 PD

Unit Disposition(s):

P13344 P654 PD

Unit Disposition(s):

P13826 P568 PD

Unit Disposition(s):

P98288 P337 PD

Unit Disposition(s):

P16753 P678 PD

Unit Disposition(s):

07/25/2020 @ 08:18:27

TPD Incident Detail

Name Pri

C - CANCELLED

DAVID NORTHWAY N 05/19/2020 01
J - SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT WRITTEN, 202N - BACK UP
JAMES SMART N 05/19/2020 01
J - SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT WRITTEN, 202N - BACK UP
AUSTIN GONZALEZ N 05/19/2020 01
B - NO REPORT WRITTEN, 202N - BACK UP

KATHLEEN CONNELL N 05/19/2020 01
B - NO REPORT WRITTEN, 202N - BACK UP

JOSEPH WHITE N 05/19/2020 01
J - SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT WRITTEN, 202N - BACK UP
ANNALEE DRAKE N 05/19/2020 01
J - SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT WRITTEN, 202N - BACK UP
Gary Senters N 05/19/2020 01
J - SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT WRITTEN, 202N - BACK UP
CHRISTOPHER PAPY N 05/19/2020 01
B - NO REPORT WRITTEN, 202N - BACK UP

ANDREW FISCHER N 05/19/2020 01
J - SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT WRITTEN, 202N - BACK UP
AARON BLEVINS N 05/19/2020 01
B - NO REPORT WRITTEN, 202N - BACK UP

MATTHEW SMIDT N 05/19/2020 01
B - NO REPORT WRITTEN, 202N - BACK UP

Cory Baldwin N 05/19/2020 01

B - NO REPORT WRITTEN, 202N - BACK UP

Dispatched

:40:

41:

41:

41

142:

142:

143:

143

:45:

:46:

147

:49:

Enroute

31 05/19/2020 01:40:31
31 05/19/2020 01:41:38
31 05/19/2020 01:41:35
147 05/19/2020 02:21:46
45
48 05/19/2020 03:17:17
14
140
31 05/19/2020 01:45:31
54
17
57 05/19/2020 01:49:57

CAD Search - IncidentDetail

On Scene

05/19/2020 01:

05/19/2020 01:

05/19/2020 01:

05/19/2020 01:

05/19/2020 01:

05/19/2020 01:

05/19/2020 01:

05/19/2020 01:

05/19/2020 01:

05/19/2020 01:

05/19/2020 01:

05/19/2020 01:

:53

117

117

;51

145

148

114

147

:53

:01

117

52:40

Cleared

05/19/2020 07:28:

05/19/2020 07:19:

05/19/2020 02:18:

05/19/2020 04:59:

05/19/2020 05:04:

05/19/2020 04:17:

05/19/2020 05:00:

05/19/2020 04:43:

05/19/2020 04:00:

05/19/2020 02:17:

05/19/2020 07:14:

05/19/2020 07:21

01

37

02

08

49

07

28

50

00

31

40

147

Time on
Incident

05:38:08

05:

00:

03:

03:

02:

03:

03

02:

00:

05:

05:

33:

31

17:

22:

34:

17:

:00:

14:

30:

27:

29:
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Call
D Sign Ag
P16754 P675 PD

Unit Disposition(s):

P98291 p212 PD

Unit Disposition(s):

P96890 P390 PD

Unit Disposition(s):

P50607 P101 PD

Unit Disposition(s):

P98076 P233 PD

Unit Disposition(s):

P37105 P855 PD

Unit Disposition(s):

P15668 P672 PD

Unit Disposition(s):

P95312 P234 PD

Unit Disposition(s):

P73078 P120 PD

Unit Disposition(s):

P16979 P769 PD

Unit Disposition(s):

P97018 P377 PD

Unit Disposition(s):

P16759 P663 PD

Unit Disposition(s):

P94863 P292 PD

07/25/2020 @ 08:18:27

TPD Incident Detail

Name Pri Dispatched
Troy Healy N
J - SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT WRITTEN, 202N - BACK UP
WILLIAM BUTLER N
B - NO REPORT WRITTEN, 202N - BACK UP
MARK ADRICK N
B - NO REPORT WRITTEN, 216N - MISC. ADMINISTRATIVE
JASON LAURSEN N
B - NO REPORT WRITTEN, 202N - BACK UP
GINNY OSBORN N
B - NO REPORT WRITTEN, 202N - BACK UP
VERNON HENDERSON N
J - SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT WRITTEN, 211N - FOLLOW UP
JOSHUA ARMSTRONG N
J - SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT WRITTEN, 202N - BACK UP
ROBIN ABNEY N 05/19/2020 03:09
B - NO REPORT WRITTEN, 202N - BACK UP

ARTEMUS SHEPHERD N
B - NO REPORT WRITTEN, 202N - BACK UP
Logan Hinds N
J - SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT WRITTEN, 202N - BACK UP
RUSSELL SCHNEIDER N
B - NO REPORT WRITTEN, 202N - BACK UP
Myles Sheckles N
B - NO REPORT WRITTEN, 202N - BACK UP

GAVIN LARREMORE N

05/19/2020 01:54:

05/19/2020 02:29:

05/19/2020 02:38:

05/19/2020 02:41:

05/19/2020 02:42:

05/19/2020 02:46:

05/19/2020 03:07:

05/19/2020 03:13:

05/19/2020 03:29:

05/19/2020 03:58:

05/19/2020 06:54:

05/19/2020 07:02:

22

02

16

06

25

35

54

149

11

00

51

17

40

Enroute

05/19/2020 01:55:42

05/19/2020 02:29:02

05/19/2020 02:38:27

05/19/2020 02:46:45

05/19/2020 03:08:01

05/19/2020 03:57:03

05/19/2020 04:00:08

05/19/2020 06:54:43

CAD Search - IncidentDetail

On Scene

05/19/2020 02:23:

05/19/2020 02:58:

05/19/2020 02:41:

05/19/2020 02:42:

05/19/2020 02:46:

05/19/2020 03:07:

05/19/2020 03:09

05/19/2020 03:13:

05/19/2020 03:29:

05/19/2020 03:58:

05/19/2020 07:00:

05/19/2020 07:03:

01

12

06

25

35

54

149

38

05

58

18

03

Cleared

05/19/2020 04:

05/21/2020 06:

05/19/2020 05:

05/19/2020 04:

05/21/2020 06:

05/19/2020 04:

05/19/2020 05

05/19/2020 03

05/19/2020 05:

05/19/2020 04:

05/19/2020 04:

05/19/2020 09:

05/19/2020 09:

37:

24:

52:

46:

24:

26:

:07:

41

39:

32:

16:

53:

24:

49

20

54

08

31

21

23

:09

20

07

26

18

59

Time on
Incident
02:14:47

02:

02

03

01:

01:

00:

02:

01

00:

02:

02:

54:

:05:

142

39

59:

31:

25

:03:

17:

53:

21:
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(3 TPD Incident Detail

iD (S:|agl:1 Ag Name Pri Dispatched Enroute On Scene
Unit Disposition(s): B - NO REPORT WRITTEN, 202N - BACK UP
Subject(s)
Roles: INVOLVED Name: STEVEN ] FAIRBANKS DOB: 12/29/1984 License:
12:00:00 AM

Address: 518 WASHINGTON AVE Age: 35 Lic. State:
Building/Apt: Gender: M
City: ALBANY, NY
Phone: Contact: Yes

Roles: DECEASED PERSON Name: JOHN DOE DOB: License:
Address: Age: Lic. State:
Building/Apt: Gender:
City:
Phone: Contact: Yes

Vehicle(s)

No P1 CAD Vehicle Data Found

Contractor(s)

Code Name Address Contact Phone
TROS ALG TRANSPORT SERVICE ERICA GROFF (850) 545-6761
Comment(s)
User Id Call Sign Date/Time Comment Text
C10012 5/19/2020 1:40:15 AM SHOTS FIRED
C10012 5/19/2020 1:40:50 AM P509 REQ EMS 10-18 GUNSHOT TO HEAD

07/25/2020 @ 08:18:27

CAD Search - IncidentDetail

Time on
Cleared Incident
119.071(5)
NY
Towed
Page: 4 of 6



User Id
C15233

C15233
C15923
C15923
C16897
C15233
C16897
C15233
C10012
C10012

C12186
C15233
C15233
C10012
C15233
C15233
C10012

C10012
C10012
C15233
C15233
C12186

07/25/2020 @ 08:18:27

TPD Incident Detail

Call Sign

P678
P210
P675

P253
P855

P234
P253

P210
P331
P210

Date/Time

5/19/2020 1:40:
5/19/2020 1:41:
5/19/2020 1:42:
5/19/2020 1:44:
5/19/2020 1:50:
5/19/2020 1:52:
5/19/2020 1:54:
5/19/2020 2:02:
5/19/2020 2:02:
5/19/2020 2:09:

5/19/2020 2:09:
5/19/2020 2:11:
5/19/2020 2:46:
5/19/2020 2:56:
5/19/2020 3:09:
5/19/2020 3:30:
5/19/2020 3:37:

5/19/2020 4:45:
5/19/2020 4:47:
5/19/2020 5:23:
5/19/2020 5:39:
5/19/2020 5:50:

52 AM
25 AM
48 AM
20 AM
17 AM
21 AM
34 AM
14 AM
51 AM
07 AM

44 AM
37 AM
41 AM
29 AM
55 AM
11 AM
22 AM

07 AM
31 AM
15 AM
58 AM
38 AM

Comment Text
EMS 10-18

ADV GUNSHOT TO THE HEAD 2020-CA-1011
ON NW
OTHER UNITS COMING FROM NE CAN DOWNGRADE
EN ROUTE TO BACK (PD/P678)
P337 WILL BE AT COMMAND POST IN DENNYS PL (PD/P210)
BACK TO NW (PD/P675)
P227 MONROE SHUT DOWN FROM 700 BLOCK TO SHARER RD // SB IS CLOSED // NB IS OPEN
10-39 SWP
Pers 1|FAIRBANKS, STEVEN: VALID CLASS DM NON-COMMERCIAL LICENSE EXP 12/29/2022
10-54 10-29P
NO LOCAL HX
EVERBRIDGE PAGE SENT TO TPD COMMAND STAFF @ 0209 HRS
COMMAND POST IS BY THE DENNYS (PD/P253)
ENRT TO THE STATION (PD/P855)
P855 OUT AT TPD
ADDED TO THE CALL LATE (PD/P234)
P210 GOING TO BE INCIDENT CMD (PD/P253)
EMS INFO FOR PT WHO WAS TRANSPORTED FROM CIRCLE K INC (PD/78835)

RUN# EM-20-0016974
MED26: AHMED, SANWAL & STARK, JASON

Pers 2|DOE, JOHN: P712 REQ FH TRANSPORT FOR ME CASE

10-39 ALG TRANSPORT REF ME CASE // ALG WILL CONTACT P712 FOR FURTHER INFO
FUNERAL HOME 97 (PD/P210)

FOLLOWING FUNERAL HOME TO THE MORGUE (PD/P331)

OPENING SB TRAFFIC ON MONROE (PD/P210)

CAD Search - IncidentDetail Page: 5 of 6



T

User Id Call Sign
C12186 P761
C12186
C12186 P331
C10430

07/25/2020 @ 08:18:27

? TPD Incident Detail

Date/Time Comment Text
5/19/2020 5:51:59 AM SB MONROE OPEN (PD/P761)

5/19/2020 5:52:40 AM X39 SWP ABOUT ROADWAY BACK OPEN
5/19/2020 5:54:10 AM AT THE MORGUE (PD/P331)
5/19/2020 6:13:06 AM P712 REQ TFD EN-ROUTE FOR CLEAN-UP OF BODILY FLUIDS

CAD Search - IncidentDetail
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